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Below is a list of abbreviati ons/acronyms for reference when reading through the Annual Report. Annual Report. 

2. List of Abbreviati ons/AcronymsAbbreviati ons/Acronyms

AGSA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Auditor-General South Africa

APP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Annual Performance Plan

BAC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bid Adjudicati on Committ ee

BBBEE  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment

CEO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Chief Executi ve Offi  cer

CATHSSETA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector Educati on and Training Authority

DHET . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Department of Higher Educati on and Training

EA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Executi ve Authority 

EC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Eastern Cape

EPWP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Expanded Public Works Programmme

ETD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Educati on Training and Development

GIBS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Gordon Insti tute of Business Science

GRAP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Generally Recognised Accounti ng Practi ces

HEI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Higher Educati on Insti tuti on

HR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Human Resource

HRD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Human Resource Development

IT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Informati on Technology

KPI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Key Performance Indicators

KZN . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . KwaZulu-Natal

MTEF  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Medium Term Strategic Framework

MOA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Memorandum of Agreement

MOU . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Memorandum of Understanding 

NACTU . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Council of Trade Unions

NAMB . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Arti san Moderati ng Body

NCV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Certi fi cate (Vocati onal)

NDP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Development Plan

NGO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Non-Governmental Organisati on

NPO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Non-Profi t Organisati on

NQF . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Qualifi cati ons Framework

NSDS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Skills Development Strategy

NSF . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Skills Fund
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NSFAS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Nati onal Student Financial Aid Scheme 

OFO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Organising Framework for Occupati ons

PFMA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Public Finance Management Act

PIVOTAL . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Professional, Vocati onal, Technical and Academic Learning

PMO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Project Management Offi  ce

PMS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Performance Management System

QCTO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Quality Council for Trades and Occupati ons

QMR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Quarterly Monitoring Report

SACCAWU . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . South Africa Commercial, Catering and Allied Workers Union

SANBI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  South African Nati onal Biodiversity Insti tute

SAQA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . South African Qualifi cati ons Authority

SARS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . South African Revenue Services

SASCOC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . South African Sports Confederati on and Olympic Committ ee 

SCM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Supply Chain Management

SDL . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Skills Development Levy

SETA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Sector Educati on and Training Authority

SIPs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Strategic Infrastructure Projects

SLA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Service Level Agreement

SMME . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises

SOP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Standard Operati ng Procedures

SP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Strategic Plan

SRSA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Sport and Recreati on South Africa
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Victor Ramathesele (Dr)
Chairperson of the Board 

3. Foreword by the Chairperson

It is my pleasure to present the 2017/18 Culture, Arts, Tourism, 
Hospitality and Sport Sector Educati on and Training Authority 
(CATHSSETA) Annual Report. On behalf of all members of the newly 
appointed Board, I wish to extend our sincerest grati tude to the 
organisati ons that nominated us as well as the Minister of Higher 
Educati on and Training, Ms Naledi Pandor for appointi ng us to serve 
on the CATHSSETA Board. We take this appointment with high regard 
and thus commit ourselves to serve this organisati on diligently. 

The current CATHSSETA Board prides itself in having representati ves 
from organised labour, organised employers, government 
departments and community organisati ons. The members are a 
refl ecti on of how diverse our sub-sectors are. We therefore look 
forward to interacti ve engagements and a fresh perspecti ve which 
will contribute immensely in addressing and meeti ng our various 
stakeholder needs. 

CATHSSETA conti nued to operate opti mally and fi lled a large number 
of criti cal positi ons with suitably experienced incumbents. The 
current year’s performance bears testi mony to the calibre of our 
employees and their commitment to service excellence. As the new 
Board, we will be working closely with the Department of Higher 
Educati on and Training (DHET) to fi nalise the appointment of the 
Chief Executi ve Offi  cer. Meanwhile, the current Executi ve Manager: 
Skills Development has been appointed to act as Chief Executi ve 
Offi  cer.

In the year under review, CATHSSETA enjoyed the support and 
guidance of its governance and oversight structures. These structures 
(Audit and Risk Committ ee, Governance and Strategy Committ ee, 
and Finance and Remunerati on Committ ee) played a criti cal role 
in ensuring that the organisati on improves its budget planning and 
fi nancial management. They also provided relevant sector-specifi c 
insight which yielded positi ve results when reviewing and planning 
our strategy. With all the support we have from all the governance 
structures and CATHSSETA staff , we are certain that in this fi nancial 
year, we will improve signifi cantly on our year-on-year performance 
against the Annual Performance Plan targets. 
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Following the plea from our stakeholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeti ng, CATHSSETA has increased its 
stakeholder engagements using various platf orms such as the roadshows, informati on sharing workshops and 
research consultati ve workshops. This is to ensure that we aff ord our stakeholders the opportunity to engage 
both the Board and CATHSSETA management at large. We have noted with great appreciati on that stakeholders 
come in great numbers to our various stakeholder engagements. Out of these sessions, we have identi fi ed the 
need for more strategic partnerships, and as such, we are embarking on more sessions to streamline these 
partnerships. To this end, I would like to express my sincerest grati tude to all the stakeholders who conti nue to 
give us constructi ve feedback on how to improve our service off erings.

In conclusion, allow me on behalf of the Board to thank the Department of Higher Educati on and Training, 
CATHSSETA governance structures as well as all our stakeholders and service providers for their ever increasing 
confi dence in CATHSSETA. My deep appreciati on also goes out to the CATHSSETA management and staff  for their 
commitment to this organisati on, their hard work and support. With your conti nued support and determinati on, 
CATHSSETA is poised for a bright future.

Victor Ramathesele (Dr) 
Chairperson of the Board: CATHSSETA

Date: 31 May 2018
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C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

4. Chief Executi ve Offi  cer’s  Overview

To the Honourable Minister of Higher Educati on and Training, 
Ms Naledi Pandor, the newly appointed Board members and our 
valued stakeholders, it is my pleasure to present the CATHSSETA 
Annual Report for the year ending 31 March 2018. 

In the year under review, I was appointed to act in the Chief 
Executi ve Offi  cer’s (CEO’s) role – while the process of recruiti ng a 
suitable and a permanent CEO is sti ll underway. I am committ ed 
to providing eff ecti ve leadership and conti nuity to the organisati on 
in order to improve our year-on-year performance - while not 
compromising on the achievements made before my ti me. As 
it is, our current performance has increased to 87% and we are 
determined to do more in the coming years.  

CATHSSETA has embarked on revenue increasing projects – 
the legacy projects - in order to contribute towards improved 
eff orts in the implementati on of our programmes, especially the 
rural development drive. Our legacy projects with King Sabatha 
Dalindyebo Technical, Vocati onal, Educati on and Training (TVET) 
College and King Hintsa TVET College in the Eastern Cape will 
ensure that these colleges are refurbished with the necessary 
infrastructure to enable their students to receive world-class 
training at these insti tuti ons. The birth of the legacy projects is as a 
result of the established partnerships with TVET colleges where our 
offi  ces are situated. With these partnerships and more to come, 
we are confi dent that we will be able to deliver on our mandate of 
being a leader in skills development within our diverse sectors. 

As a skills development enti ty, our mandate is to empower and 
upskill stakeholders within our diverse sectors. It is against this 
background that in the year under review, and for the fi rst ti me 
in the history of CATHSSETA, we partnered with the Gordon 
Insti tute of Business Science (GIBS) to develop a custom made 

Keitumetse Lebaka (Ms)
The Ac  ng CEO 
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GIBS Executi ve Development programme to equip managers in our sub-sectors. The Research study conducted 
in 2016, indicated that there is a shortage of skills in our sub-sectors, predominantly in the executi ve and senior 
management roles. As CATHSSETA, we took the responsibility to close these gaps by implementi ng an Executi ve 
Development Programme from an accredited higher learning insti tuti on which prides itself in world-class 
executi ve programmes. The 12-month Executi ve Development Programme includes study tours to internati onal 
desti nati ons that excel in our related sectors such as Las Vegas, Hong Kong, Berlin and Warsaw. 

The partnership between CATHSSETA and GIBS helps us to live up to our mission of facilitati ng skills development 
through strategic partnerships in order to contribute to economic growth.

I wish to take this opportunity to sincerely thank Mr Pumzile Kedama – the former Board Chairperson as well 
as Mr Eddy Khosa – the interim Board Chairperson who took over from Mr Kedama aft er he resigned in January 
2018. Both these leaders were instrumental in shaping this organisati on and it is under their leadership that 
we saw improvements in our performance against set targets. Their fi rm grip in the organisati on assisted us to 
streamline our programmes and focus our energy on strategic partnerships so as to deliver on our mandate.

I also thank the Department of Higher Educati on and Training, our partner departments, Tourism, Sport and 
Recreati on, Conservati on, and Arts and Culture – at both nati onal and provincial levels; the Auditor-General South 
Africa (AGSA), governance structures as well as other stakeholders and service providers who have shown great 
confi dence in the organisati on. 

Finally I wish to extend my grati tude and appreciati on to CATHSSETA management and staff  for their commitment 
to the effi  cient running of this organisati on, thus leading to improved performance. 

Keitumetse Lebaka (Ms) 
The Ac  ng CEO: CATHSSETA

Date: 31 May 2018
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5. Statement of responsibility and 
confi rmati on of accuracy for the 
Annual Report
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confi rm the following: 

All informati on and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report is consistent with the Annual Financial Statements 
and annual performance informati on audited by the Auditor-General.

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by 
Nati onal Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Recognised 
Accounti ng Practi ces (GRAP) standards applicable to the public enti ty. The annual performance informati on has 
been prepared in accordance with the Nati onal Treasury guidelines for performance informati on. 

The Accounti ng Authority is responsible for the preparati on of the Annual Financial Statements and for the 
judgements made in this informati on.  

The Accounti ng Authority is responsible for establishing, and implementi ng a system of internal control designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance informati on, the human 
resources informati on and the Annual Financial Statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly refl ects the operati ons, the governance informati on, the performance 
informati on, the human resources informati on and the fi nancial aff airs of the public enti ty for the fi nancial year 
ended 31 March 2018.

Yours faithfully 

Victor Ramathesele (Dr)
Chairperson of the Board
Date: 31 May 2018



C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

15

6. Strategic Overview

6.1 Vision 
A leader in skills development within our diverse sector.

6.2 Mission
To facilitate skills development through strategic partnerships for CATHSSETA to contribute to economic growth.

6.3 Values
CATHSSETA’s insti tuti onal values are: 

Table 1: Strategic Overview

VALUE Living this value means that CATHSSETA will seek to:

Service Excellence

• Understand stakeholder needs, respond ti meously, effi  ciently and eff ecti vely to 

stakeholder queries and requests 

• Display an image of professionalism and accountability 

• Drive quality and high performance

Fairness and Transparency

• It conducts its operati onal business without fear or favour

• All providers feel confi dent that their bids are given adequate considerati on and 

evaluated professionally

• Stakeholder are enti tled to believe that nothing is hidden and there are no 

undeclared meanings and intenti ons

• Everything is in the open for all to see, subject to ethical conduct and legal 

boundaries

Respect

• Every stakeholder experiences humane relati ons from the employees  

• Their self-worth is not eroded or negati vely impacted  by our conduct or acti ons 

• Stakeholders experience humility from CATHSSETA staff  in their relati ons



Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

16

C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

VALUE Living this value means that CATHSSETA will seek to:

Accessibility

• Develop and promote skills development programmes to ensure equal access to 

opportuniti es by all 

• Develop skills development programmes aimed at improving opportuniti es for people 

in rural areas

• Ensure that upon request, conversati ons, documentati on and publicati ons are 

translated to prominent languages relevant to a geographical area 

Integrity

• Value openness, honesty, consistency and fairness 

• Act in good faith in all our day-to-day acti viti es 

• Conduct operati ons to fulfi l public expectati on about what CATHSSETA was 

established to do and be 

Stakeholder orientati on

• Build partnerships with relevant government departments public and private training 

providers and organisati ons 

• Off er quality educati on and skills development opportuniti es and experiences to 

learners to ensure ulti mate employability and reduce inequality in the sector



C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

17

7. Legislati ve and Other Mandates
Both the Consti tuti on of the Republic of South Africa and various other statutes passed by the Nati onal Assembly 
direct CATHSSETA to perform skills development functi ons and conduct its operati ons in specifi c ways. Various 
government departments develop policies with direct relevance and impact on the legislated mandate of the 
Sector Educati on and Training Authoriti es (SETAs) and thus enjoin CATHSSETA to commit resources towards 
realising such stated imperati ves. 

ConsƟ tuƟ onal Mandate
Secti on 29 of the Consti tuti on provides for all South Africans the basic right to educati on. It states that everyone 
has the right:- 

• To a basic educaƟ on, including adult basic educaƟ on 

• To further educaƟ on, which the state, through reasonable measures, must make progressively available and 
accessible

Working towards this Consti tuti onal imperati ve, CATHSSETA is established to research and develop a 
Sector Skills Plan (SSP) to rollout skills development programmes to service the interest of the following sectors 
within our economy and society:

• Arts, Culture and Heritage

• ConservaƟ on

• Gaming and LoƩ eries

• Hospitality

• Sport, RecreaƟ on and Fitness

• Tourism and Travel Services
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LegislaƟ ve Mandate 
Table 2: CATHSSETA Establishment LegislaƟ on

Legislati on or Regulati ons Purpose

Skills Development Act of 1998 (as 
amended) 

• The Act establishes SETAs, defi nes their mandates and responsibiliti es. It 

also sets parameters for the use of the grants and relati onship between the 

DHET and SETAs. It regulates governance framework scope of operati on for 

each SETA.

Skills Development Levies Act (1999 
as amended)

• To impose the payment of skills levies by employer organisati ons to 

moti vate investment in skills development. 

Public Finance Management Act 
(1999 as amended)

• To regulate fi nancial management in the nati onal government and 

provincial governments. 

• To ensure that all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabiliti es of those 

governments are managed effi  ciently and eff ecti vely, to provide for the 

responsibiliti es of persons entrusted with fi nancial management in those 

governments and to provide for matt ers connected therewith. 

Broad Based Black Economic 
Empowerment Act of 2003 (as 
amended)

• It aims to accelerate the parti cipati on of black people in the economy by 

encouraging change in the following key areas of business: ownership, 

management and control, employment equity, skills development, 

preferenti al procurement, enterprise development and socio-economic 

development.

Basic Conditi ons of Employment Act 
of 1997, Act No. 75 of 1997: Sectoral 
Determinati on No 5: Learnerships

• The Act makes sectoral determinati on establishing binding conditi ons of 

employment and rates of allowances for learners in all sectors where Sector 

Educati on and Training Authoriti es operate.

The SETA Grant Regulati ons, Noti ce 
No. 35940 of 2012

• The Grant Regulati ons regulate the use of monies received by the SETA and 

processes required for disbursement of such monies.



Policy
The above legislati on is supported by the following policy directi ves:

Table 3: Policy direcƟ ves

Policy Purpose

Nati onal Development Plan (NDP) 

• The NDP aims to eliminate poverty and reduce inequality by 2030. According 

to the plan, South Africa can realise these goals through its people, growing 

an inclusive economy, building capabiliti es, enhancing the capacity of the 

state, and promoti ng leadership and partnerships throughout society.

Nati onal Skills Development 
Strategy (NSDS III)

• The key driving force of this strategy is improving the eff ecti veness and 

effi  ciency of the skills development systems and eff ecti ve responses to the 

needs of the labour market and social equity. The strategy seeks to establish 

and promote closer links between employers and training insti tuti ons and 

between both of them and the SETAs. It represents an explicit commitment 

to encouraging the link between skills development and career paths, 

career development and promoti on of sustainable employment and career 

progression.

White Paper on Post-School 
Educati on and Training (WPSET)

• The White Paper provides a vision for a single, coherent, diff erenti ated and 

highly arti culated post-school educati on and training system; that contributes 

to the country’s fi ght against structural challenges facing our society by 

expanding access to educati on and training opportuniti es and increasing 

equity, as well as achieving high levels of excellence and innovati on.

Nati onal Skills Accord

• The Nati onal Skills Accord establishes a partnership between DHET, 

communiti es, organised business and labour aimed at promoti ng common 

skills development and training needs. The Accord has eight commitments 

and commitments four, six and seven have specifi c focus on skills planning 

and the operati ons of CATHSSETA.

Nati onal Human Resource 
Development (HRD) Strategy of 
South Africa

• The Nati onal HRD Strategy of South Africa (2010 to 2030) is a social 

compact disti lling the criti cal skill challenges for the  socio-economic growth 

and development of the country. The document also set out collecti ve 

commitments for all sectors of the society.

Medium Term Strategic Framework 
(MTSF)

• The MTSF outlines government priority spending and delivery areas for 

the period 2014–2019 electoral terms. It refl ects the commitments made 

in the electi on manifesto of the governing party. It sets out the acti ons the 

government will take and targets to be achieved. The MTSF is structured 

around 14 priority outcomes which covers the focus areas identi fi ed in the 

NDP and Government’s electoral mandate. 19
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8.  Organisati onal Structure

Board

CEO (Acting)
CEO’s Offi ce
Audit and Risk

Manager

COO

CEO’s Offi ce
Executive Manager
Executive Support 

CFO (Acting)

Minister for Higher 
Education and Training 



C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

21

C A T H

   





C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

23

1. Auditor’s Report: Predetermined Objecti ves
The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance informati on to provide 
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against 
predetermined objecti ves is included in the report to management, with material fi ndings being reported under 
the Predetermined Objecti ves heading.

Refer to page 69 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Informati on.

2. Situati onal Analysis
2.1 Service Delivery Environment
The CATHSSETA delivers its services to a diverse but very important consti tuency comprising of the following six 
sub-sectors: Arts, Culture and Heritage; Conservati on; Gaming and Lott eries; Hospitality; Sport, Recreati on and 
Fitness; and Tourism and Travel Services. Each of these sub-sectors are unique and play a signifi cant role not only 
in the economy but also in the broader quest for social cohesion. The CATHSSETA’s operati ng environment is 
unique in that it is proliferated by small enterprises. This invariably means that many of the employers served by 
CATHSSETA are exempted from paying the skills development levy. 

In the fi nancial year 2017/18, a total number of enterprises registered with CATHSSETA was 30 752. From this 
total, 30 050 of the enterprises are Small Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMMEs). Only 7 380 enti ti es paid skills 
levies, making up the total budget for CATHSSETA. This impacts the budget thus resulti ng in a gap between the 
available fi nancial resources and those required to address skills shortages within the sector.

In the 2016/2017 fi nancial year, CATHSSETA extended its physical footprint by establishing regional offi  ces to 
increase its operati onal presence in all provinces. This has enhanced service accessibility, improved partnerships 
with TVET colleges as well as support for work placement opportuniti es, closing the gap between skills development 
and work experience.

In the year under review, CATHSSETA witnessed an increased parti cipati on and uptake for our Mandatory Grant 
funding. This was as a result of the establishment of the regional offi  ces, which enabled our stakeholders to easily 
access CATHSSETA off erings. Our conti nued engagements through roadshows also contributed to this change.
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2.2 OrganisaƟ onal Environment 
In April 2017, the Administrati on period of the CATHSSETA offi  cially came to an end. The Minister of Higher 
Educati on and Training appointed an Accounti ng Authority, comprising members with extensive knowledge and 
experience in the designated sub-sectors. The Accounti ng Authority appointed an Acti ng Chief Executi ve Offi  cer 
to provide leadership and ensure a smooth transiti on.  

CATHSSETA established Board committ ees to further strengthen governance and accountability. The newly 
established committ ees include ExecuƟ ve; Finance and RemuneraƟ on; Audit and Risk; and Governance and 
Strategy. These have played an oversight role to ensure the SETA maintains excepti onal performance standards. 
Each of these committ ees have developed and adopted Committ ee Charters that respecti vely outline their 
functi ons and responsibiliti es. 

2.3 Key Policy Developments and LegislaƟ ve Changes
The Nati onal Skills Development Strategy III was extended from 01 April 2018 to 31 March 2020. In parallel 
with this extension, the Minister of Higher Educati on and Training issued a Government Gazett e No. 1570 of 15 
December 2016 read with Government Gazett e No.39260 of October 2015, re-establishing the 21 SETAs for a 
further period of two years, ending on 31 March 2020. 

2.4 Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals
The development of the CATHSSETA goals and goal statements were guided by the mandate as legislated, policy 
framework and government prioriti es. The existi ng challenges faced by CATHSSETA were taken into considerati on 
in the implementati on of its programmes during the fi nancial year. Greater focus was placed on improving 
performance monitoring and evaluati on as well as ensuring maximum and insti tuti onalised stakeholder 
parti cipati on in CATHSSETA’s programmes.

Strategic Goal 1: Develop sector capacity to deliver skills development programmes informed by sector 
research and business intelligence

One of the main objecti ves of CATHSSETA is to increase the skills base within the six sub-sectors. Stakeholder 
engagement and partnership initi ati ves between the SETA, employers, private providers, government, other SETAs 
and sectoral bodies and relevant insti tuti ons are crucial in increasing the capacity of the sector to meet industry 
skills needs throughout the country. During the period under review, CATHSSETA facilitated the establishment of 
additi onal partnerships with terti ary insti tuti ons (fi ve with TVET colleges and eight with universiti es), industry (18 
with employers), and sectoral bodies in order to strengthen the skills planning processes, the quality of learning 
programmes, and to increase the number of benefi ciaries in various learning programmes. 
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Strategic Goal 2: Eff ecƟ ve delivery of learning intervenƟ ons

In the 2016/17 fi nancial year, CATHSSETA established regional offi  ces in all provinces in order to expand its visibility 
and increase access to its programmes to potenti al benefi ciaries. These initi ati ves have strengthened partnerships 
with TVET colleges, expanded skills development programmes to rural areas which has resulted in an increase of 
programmes implemented as well as in the number of benefi ciaries in various learning programmes. 

CATHSSETA had also identi fi ed Ten Top Priority PIVOTAL Skills Programmes, targeti ng 1 928 benefi ciaries. At the 
end of the fi nancial year, 4 000 learners were registered in the Top Ten Priority PIVOTAL Learning Programmes, 
which is 107% above the annual target. 

Strategic Goal 3: Improved CATHSSETA competence in delivering to the mandate

During the period under review, CATHSSETA conti nued to strengthen governance structures by ensuring a 
functi oning SETA Board and Board sub-committ ees that eff ecti vely delivers on its mandate. The SETA also 
reviewed policies and the organisati onal structure to ensure that the functi ons of the departments are aligned for 
eff ecti ve implementati on of its strategic goals and objecti ves. CATHSSETA also conducted stakeholder workshops 
to communicate the new SETA management system (Indicium System), the Mandatory/Discreti onary Grants 
processes as well as the learning programmes. As a result, the overall organisati onal performance increased from 
83% in 2016/17 to 87% in 2017/18 (4% increase).      
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Learning Programmes Benefi ciaries’ Feedback
Vemoni Recycling and Trading Intern’s Feedback

Vanessa’s feedback

“I have gained a lot of experience through CATHSSETA and I am grateful. Now I know that there is hope for people 
who come from disadvantaged backgrounds like myself. Thank you CATHSSETA for coming to our grounds and 
raising us up.”

Gomolemo’s feedback

“Through the CATHSSETA Internship programme, I was given the opportunity to parti cipate in a Skill Programme 
at Venomi Recycling and Trading. I now have bett er communicati ons skills. An opportunity like this contributes to 
the goals of the country’s economy and one’s personal growth.” 

CATHSSETA Internship Programme in Northern Cape

Shaun Mashimbye’s feedback

Shawn Mashimbye is from the Northern Cape is one of the 117 youth who were off ered the CATHSSETA Internship 
programme for 12 Months. He completed his programme and received an accredited Nati onal Certi fi cate in Food 
and Beverages. The programme was sponsored by the Department of Tourism under the Expanded Public Works 
Programme.

Shortly aft er graduati ng, Mashimbye found a job at a conventi on centre which specialises in events management 
and conferencing.

“I am so grateful for being part of the programme. I feel fortunate to have learnt so much about the hospitality 
industry and how I can contribute to the country’s economy by starti ng my own tourism-related business,” said 
Mashimbye.

Deputy Minister of Tourism comments on the CATHSSETA Internship Programme in the Northern Cape

“The success of this training programme is shared with industry stakeholders who partnered with us to provide 
in-house practi cal training for the learners. Thank you for rallying behind this initi ati ve, and for up-skilling the 
tourism ambassadors that are graduati ng,” said Thabethe.

To the graduates, Thabethe said: “I applaud your eff orts in achieving your CATHSSETA accredited qualifi cati on. I 
urge you to consider advancing yourselves beyond this point to be the future employment creators in our sector.”
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Youth in AcƟ on OrganisaƟ on in Qwaqwa - Free State  

Hector’s feedback

“To CATHSSETA, without you, this programme would be nothing. The certi fi cate that I will receive through this 
programme will open doors for some of us. Thank you for empowering us and giving us skills that no one will take 
away from us.” 

Mc Mthembu – Youth in AcƟ on Director’s feedback

“CATHSSETA has played a major role in the transformati on of Skills Development from a rural town in QwaQwa 
where unproducti ve, unsupervised youth with too much ti me, end up getti  ng into trouble. The CATHSSETA 
programme uses the “First Serve” Life Skills to empower young people by providing them with the certi fi cate 
through a programme that promotes positi ve values, healthy habits and educati on. This programme has made 
a diff erence within our community. We are proud to announce that 12 learners from the skills development 
programme will be permanent employees at our local Chicken Licken as from 1 July 2018. This has been made 
possible through the CATHSSETA funded programme and also their hard work “.  

3.4  Strategy to overcome areas of under performance
In the fi nancial year under review, the organisati onal structure was reviewed in order to strengthen capacity at 
regional offi  ces and to eff ecti vely implement the mandate of CATHSSETA as legislated. The SETA will conti nue with 
the process of fi lling vacant positi ons in order to att ain the strategic objecti ves in the relevant areas. 

Changes to planned targets
During the fi nancial year under review, there were no changes to planned targets.
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1. IntroducƟ on
CATHSSETA is established in terms of the Skills Development Act, 97 of 1998. The primary objecti ve of CATHSSETA 
is to fulfi l the requirements of the Skills Development Act and its att endant regulati ons as well as to strive to 
achieve, for its specifi c sector, the goals as set out in the Nati onal Skills Development Strategy III. 

In additi on to this, Regulati on 30 of the Nati onal Treasury Regulati ons prescribes that a Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) must be concluded between the Executi ve Authority, namely the Department of Higher Educati on and 
Training and CATHSSETA. This SLA contains strategic objecti ves that must be achieved and  reported on quarterly.

The CATHSSETA Consti tuti on, the Code of Conduct and its legislated and standing committ ees are aligned to the 
principles incorporated in the Code of Corporate Practi ces and Conduct in the King report.

2. Porƞ olio CommiƩ ees (if applicable) 
Parliament is the legislati ve arm of the Republic with two houses, the Nati onal Assembly and the Nati onal Council 
of Provinces. The CATHSSETA reports on a periodic basis to the respecti ve committ ees of the Nati onal Assembly 
on its aff airs as per the committ ee programmes.  Parliament exercises its role through evaluati ng the performance 
of CATHSSETA by interrogati ng its Annual Financial Statements and performance informati on. 

On 5 September 2017, CATHSSETA met with the Portf olio Committ ee on Higher Educati on and Training, where the 
2016/17 Annual Report was presented.

3. ExecuƟ ve Authority
CATHSSETA is a schedule 3A Public Enti ty reporti ng to the Department of Higher Educati on and Training. The 
Minister of Higher Educati on and Training is the SETA Executi ve Authority (EA).

During the year under review, the Minister of Higher Educati on and Training, Dr BE Nzimande appointed the new 
Accounti ng Authority of CATHSSETA. 

The following quarterly reports have been submitt ed for the fi nancial year:

• Quarterly Monitoring Report (QMRs)

• Governance Charter

• Governance Review for Risk and Audit

• Governance Review for AccounƟ ng
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4. The AccounƟ ng Authority/Board 
The Minister appointed the new Board on 31 March 2017. The new Board commenced with their duti es in the 
2017/18 fi nancial year.

Table 15: The AccounƟ ng Authority/Board

Name of Members Date Appointed Date Resigned
Total Number of 
meeti ngs held

Number of Meet-
ings att ended 

Mr Pumzile Kedama 31 March 2017 31 January 2018 18 13

Dr Victor Ramathesele 31 March 2017 N/A 18 16

Ms Bulelwa Seti 31 March 2017 N/A 18 15

Mr Michael Sikani 31 March 2017 N/A 18 15

Ms Leelavathi Reddy 31 March 2017 N/A 18 17

Mr Eddy Khosa 31 March 2017 N/A 18 17

Mr Carva Pop 31 March 2017 N/A 18 15

Mr Barry Hendricks 31 March 2017 N/A 18 16

Ms Phelisiwe Sithole 31 March 2017 N/A 18 17

The role of the AccounƟ ng Authority

In terms of the approved CATHSSETA Consti tuti on, the Accounti ng Authority has the following duti es to perform:

• Govern and manage CATHSSETA in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and any 
other applicable legislaƟ on

• Ensure that CATHSSETA achieves the objecƟ ves contemplated in item 4 and performs the funcƟ on 
contemplated in item 5 of the ConsƟ tuƟ on

• Provide eff ecƟ ve leadership and ensure that CATHSSETA implements the goals of the NSDS and the 
Performance Agreement with the Minister;

• Provide Strategic direcƟ on for CATHSSETA

• Liaise with stakeholders

• Ensure that CATHSSETA complies with the relevant statutory requirements of this ConsƟ tuƟ on
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• Exercise the duty of utmost care to ensure reasonable protecƟ on of the assets and records of CATHSSETA

• Act with fi delity, honesty, integrity and in the best interests of CATHSSETA in managing the fi nancial aff airs 
of CATHSSETA

• On request, disclose to the Minister all material facts, including those reasonably discoverable, which in any 
way may infl uence the decisions or acƟ ons of the Minister 

• Manage insƟ tuƟ onal risk

• Monitor the performance of CATHSSETA

• Ensure that its members and the members of the commiƩ ees established by it, comply with the Code of 
Conduct set out in Annexure 2 of the CATHSSETA ConsƟ tuƟ on.

CommiƩ ees

The following committ ees have been established by the Accounti ng Authority:  

4.1 The ExecuƟ ve CommiƩ ee
The Executi ve Committ ee has been established to supervise the proper management of all fi nancial matt ers and 
oversee the overall management of CATHSSETA. 

Table 16: The ExecuƟ ve CommiƩ ee

Name of Members Date Appointed Date Resigned
Number of 
meeti ngs held

Number of 
Meeti ngs 
att ended 

Mr Eddy Khosa   01 February 2018 N/A 15 4

Dr Victor Ramathesele 31 March 2017 N/A 15 12

Ms Bulelwa Seti 31 March 2017 N/A 15 11

Mr Michael Sikani 31 March 2017 N/A 15 15

Mr Pumzile Kedama 31 March 2017 31 January 2018 15 11

 



Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

48

C A T H S S E T A  |  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 7 / 1 8  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R

4.2 The Governance and Strategy CommiƩ ee
The Governance and Strategy Committ ee has been established to promote good governance.

Table 17: The Governance and Strategy CommiƩ ee

Name of Members Date Appointed Date Resigned
Number of 

Meeti ngs held 
Number of Meeti ngs 

att ended

Mr Carver Pop 31 March 2017 N/A 13 13

Ms Leelavathi Reddy 31 March 2017 N/A 13 12

Mr Eddy Khosa 31 March 2017 N/A 13 12

4.3 The Audit and Risk CommiƩ ee
The Audit and Risk Committ ee has been established to promote eff ecti veness of risk management, control and 
governance processes within the organisati on.

Table 18: Audit and Risk CommiƩ ee Members: Chaired by Ms Nompumelelo Mokou

Name Qualifi cati ons Membership Date Appointed
Number of 

Meeti ngs held
Number of Meeti ngs 

att ended 

Ms N Mokou CA(SA) Independent 30 June 2017 5 5

Mr JG Shilubane BSc Independent 30 June 2017 5 5

Ms AD Mbatha CA(SA) Independent 30 June 2017 5 2
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4.4 The Finance and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee 
The Finance and Remunerati on Committ ee has been established as an advisory body which reports to the 
Accounti ng Authority. 

Table 19: The Finance and RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee

Name of Members Date Appointed Date Resigned
Number of 

Meeti ngs held 
Number of 

Meeti ngs att ended 

Ms Bulelwa Seti 14 June 2017 N/A 5 5

Ms Phelisiwe Sithole 14 June 2017 N/A 5 5

Mr Greg Fredericks 14 June 2017 N/A 5 2

Ms Ntombizodwa Ndhlovu 14 June 2017 N/A 5 3

Mr Barry Hendricks 14 June 2017 N/A 5 5

4.5 RemuneraƟ on of CommiƩ ee Members 
All Committ ees members were paid a meeti ng allowance and the Chairperson’s allowance as refl ected in the 
Annual Financial Statements. Members from government and public enti ti es were not paid meeti ng allowances 
but all members’ travel arrangements were covered by CATHSSETA in terms of the circular issued by the Nati onal 
Treasury on remunerati on tariff s for offi  ce bearers.

5. Risk Management
CATHSSETA is committ ed to Good Corporate Governance. A robust risk management process that is embedded in 
the organisati on is a core element of Corporate Governance. In line with our Risk Framework and Risk Policy, we 
are required to conduct risk assessments in order to identi fy new and emerging risks.

Risk assessments were conducted quarterly which enabled us to identi fy risks and formulate eff ecti ve controls to 
miti gate the risks to an acceptable level.

Each risk was ranked as either high, medium or low. Thus enabling us to commit more resources and eff orts on 
high risks that threaten the organisati on’s achievement of its strategic objecti ves. 
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Risk registers are compiled from the risk assessment which outlines the risks, the controls put in place to reduce 
the risks and risk owners are assigned to ensure each division is responsible for managing risk within their 
respecti ve division. Thus embracing the culture of risk management throughout the enti re organisati on.

Timelines are outlined in the risk registers to ensure eff ecti ve risk management. The Risk Manager is responsible 
for ensuring that risk owners implement the controls agreed upon within the ti melines that were initi ally set.

The Audit and Risk Committ ee monitors the eff ecti veness of the risk management functi on through risk reports 
that are presented on a quarterly basis.

6. Internal Control Unit
CATHSSETA has established an Internal Audit and Risk Management division. The division’s key functi ons are the 
following:

• Assist in accomplishing our objecƟ ves by bringing a systemaƟ c, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve 
the eff ecƟ veness of risk management, control and governance processes within the organisaƟ on

• Implement and maintain an eff ecƟ ve internal control environment 

• Keeping abreast of new developments aff ecƟ ng CATHSSETA’s acƟ viƟ es and maƩ ers aff ecƟ ng internal audit 
work

• IdenƟ fying, assessing and managing key operaƟ onal, fi nancial and compliance risks of the organisaƟ on

0
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7. Internal Audit and Audit Risk CommiƩ ee
CATHSSETA appointed an external service provider as an outsourced Internal Audit Functi on for the enti ty.

In line with the PFMA, the Internati onal Standards for the Professional Practi ce of Internal Auditi ng issued by 
the Insti tute of Internal Auditors and King IV Report on Corporate Governance, Internal Auditors are required 
to provide the Audit and Risk Committ ee and Management with quarterly internal audit reports in terms of its 
approved annual and three-year rolling Internal Audit Plan.

The objecti ve of CATHSSETA internal audit functi on is to:

Provide professional, independent and objecti ve assurance and consulti ng acti vity designed to add value and 
improve the operati ons of CATHSSETA.

The key acƟ viƟ es of Internal Audit are to:

• Develop and implement a rolling three-year annual audit plan based on CATHSSETA’s key areas of risks, 
including any risks or control concerns idenƟ fi ed by management, and submit the plan to the Audit and Risk 
CommiƩ ee for review and approval as well as periodic updates

• Consider the scope of work of the external auditors and other assurance providers, as appropriate, for the 
purpose of providing opƟ mal audit coverage

• To perform effi  cient and eff ecƟ ve audits which are proacƟ ve and promptly reported with the applicaƟ on of 
suitably skilled senior staff  

• The performance of independent compliance tests/reviews, to ensure controls idenƟ fi ed by management 
have been funcƟ oning properly in each division throughout the period under review and reporƟ ng on the 
results of such reviews 

• Timely issuing of reports and regular internal audit follow ups on correcƟ ve acƟ ons relaƟ ng to weaknesses 
idenƟ fi ed in previous reviews 

The three-year Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Audit and Risk CommiƩ ee and the following audits 
were undertaken in the fi nancial year:

• Review of Performance InformaƟ on

• Supply Chain Management

• Learning IntervenƟ ons 

• Financial Discipline Review

• Follow up on prior year audit fi ndings
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8. Compliance with Laws and RegulaƟ ons
CATHSSETA had all its policies reviewed in the year under review. They were tabled at all the relevant committ ees 
and the Board. This exercise was done to ensure that all policies are aligned with all relevant laws and regulati ons 
that are applicable to the SETA.

9. Fraud and CorrupƟ on  
Our approved Fraud and Anti -Corrupti on Policy incorporates the Whistle Blowing Protecti on clause which 
encourages offi  cials to make confi denti al disclosures about suspected fraud and corrupti on within the organisati on.

The Policy also outlines the process that should be followed in terms of reporti ng fraud and corrupti on cases. In 
additi on to our policy, CATHSSETA has a Fraud Hotline, which is managed by an external service provider. Reports 
received are followed up and investi gated accordingly.

10. Minimising Confl ict of Interest
The CATHSSETA staff  signed an annual register on Declarati on of Interest. The current members of Board 
Committ ees and the CATHSSETA Board, also signed the Register for Declarati on of Interest.

11. Code of Conduct 
The CATHSSETA has an approved Code of Conduct Policy. The SETA standard consti tuti on further provides for a 
code of conduct for committ ee members and executi ve management outlining corporate governance and the 
roles of all committ ees. 
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12. Health Safety and Environmental Issues
The CATHSSETA is committ ed to the fulfi lment of the requirements sti pulated in the Occupati onal Health and 
Safety Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993) and to this end, a Health and Safety Committ ee was established and it 
monitors the health and safety of employees and their work environment.

In additi on to this, we embarked on a Health and Safety Compliance Audit and are currently in the process 
of implementi ng the recommendati ons which emanated from the audit conducted. We have also developed a 
Health and Safety Policy that was approved by the Board.

13. Company/Board Secretary (If Applicable)
In the year under review, CATHSSETA appointed Imbokodvo Bethany Governance & Statutory Compliance Pty Ltd 
as our Company/Board Secretariat. 

14. Social Responsibility
All CATHSSETA staff  members parti cipated in the Mandela Day Initi ati ve. CATHSSETA staff  donated blankets to the 
Vukani Organisati on Centre, situated in New Eersterus, Hammanskraal.
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15. Audit and Risk CommiƩ ee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2018.

Audit and Risk CommiƩ ee Responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committ ee reports that it has complied with its responsibiliti es arising from Secti on 51 (1) (a) 
(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulati on 3.1.13.  The Audit and Risk Committ ee also 
reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk Committ ee Charter, has 
regulated its aff airs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibiliti es as contained therein, 
except that we have not reviewed changes in accounti ng policies and practi ces. 

The Eff ecƟ veness of Internal Control
The eff ecti veness of the internal control environment was assessed in relati on to the results and conclusions 
made by Internal Audit.  

Table 20: Audit and Risk CommiƩ ee

Period: 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Dates Audits performed Overall assessment/conclusion

April 2017 Audit of Performance Informati on 
Inadequate and ineff ecti ve and hence needs to 
be strengthened and improved

May 2017 Human Resources and Payroll Review
Inadequate and ineff ecti ve and hence needs to 
be strengthened and improved

August 2017  SCM
Inadequate and ineff ecti ve and hence needs to 
be strengthened and improved

November  2017
Discreti onary Grant Commitment Schedule 
SCM 

Inadequate and ineff ecti ve and hence needs to 
be strengthened and improved

December 2017 Performance Informati on Quarter 2 and 3
Inadequate and ineff ecti ve and hence needs to 
be strengthened and improved

January 2018 Learning Interventi ons 
Inadequate and ineff ecti ve and hence needs to 
be strengthened and improved
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2017/18 Management and Monthly/Quarterly Reports

The public enti ty has submitt ed monthly and quarterly reports to the Executi ve Authority.

The following reports have been submitt ed on a quarterly basis:

• Youth Accord Report 

• Strategic Infrastructure Projects (SIPs) Report 

• Rural Projects 

• Quarterly Management Reports

• Governance Charter 

EvaluaƟ on of Financial Statements

We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prepared by the public enti ty.
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Auditor’s Report
We have reviewed the public enti ty’s implementati on plan for audit issues raised in the prior periods and we are 
sati sfi ed that the matt ers have been adequately resolved, except for the following:

• Records Management 

• SupporƟ ng Evidence for Employer Funded Projects

• Data MigraƟ on due to new IT system

The Audit and Risk Committ ee concurs with the conclusions of the external auditor on the audited Annual 
Financial Statements. These statements should be read in conjuncti on with the Auditors’ Report.

Nompumelelo Mokou (Ms)
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Commi  ee
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1. IntroducƟ on 
The Human Resource (HR) Department ensures opti mum and effi  cient uti lisati on and development of human 
capital and provides an advisory service on matt ers pertaining to organisati onal development, performance 
management, learning and development and sound employee relati ons. Other Human Resource prioriti es for the 
year under review was providing CATHSSETA staff  with an eff ecti ve employee health and wellness programme, 
review and development of all HR policies as well as effi  cient recruitment and placement processes. 

1.1 Performance Management
One of the key prioriti es for the year under review was performance management. CATHSSETA recognises 
that performance management is the foundati on for organisati onal success and is committ ed to an eff ecti ve 
performance management system and to providing a conducive working environment and resources for all 
employees to perform to their full potenti al to enable a high-performance culture. Performance management 
is a conti nuous process, performed throughout the year and involving bi-annual reviews to ensure that the 
organisati on’s objecti ves and organisati onal performance against these are aligned and on target. The HR 
department improved on the performance management system by providing workshops for all employees.  The 
employees embraced this interventi on; there was meaningful parti cipati on and commitment towards the success 
of the process.    

1.2 Policy Review
Over the course of the fi nancial year under review, the Human Resources Department reviewed a total of 22 
Human Resources policies to ensure that they remain current, relevant, promote fair labour practi ces as well 
as alignment with best practi ce and furthermore to ensure that the rules, responsibiliti es and procedures that 
govern HR and the conduct of employees are clearly documented and understood by all. The reviewed policies 
were presented to the relevant governance structures within CATHSSETA for endorsement and approval.  The HR 
department further developed the internal CATHSSETA Internship Policy and implemented the HR Strategy. The 
HR department was also responsible for ensuring that the organisati on-wide policies were work-shopped with 
the employees with weekly sessions facilitated by the HR team. HR is also in the process of developing standard 
operati ng procedures (SOP) for all HR policies and at the end of the fi nancial year under review, implemented two 
of SOPs, leave management; and recruitment and selecti on.
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1.3 Internship Programme
The HR department oversees the internal Internship Programme. Internships are work-based training programmes 
for unemployed graduates. This programme gives graduates workplace experience to develop skills and acquire 
work experience and also increases their chances of obtaining employment. In the year under review, CATHSSETA 
successfully recruited the second cohort of Interns. Twenty four Interns were placed in the Nati onal Offi  ce and 12 
Interns were placed in the six regional offi  ces. Monthly meeti ngs are conducted with the Interns to monitor their 
development and to address employment issues.

1.4 Learning and Development
CATHSSETA’s employee learning and development is the cornerstone upon which the organisati ons conti nuous 
quality improvement is built on. It is therefore important that the organisati on has adequate and effi  cient human 
capital for enhanced performance and service delivery. For that reason, a number of our staff  members were 
aff orded the opportunity to undergo training interventi ons such as Business Writi ng Skills, Contract Management, 
Women in Leadership and Public Relati ons Management which amounted to R627,094.88. Staff  were also invited 
to parti cipate in the Bursary programme which amounted to R949,397.20.  

1.5 Employee Wellness 
CATHSSETA understands the eff ect that individual health and wellness has on the organisati on and is an integral 
part of the overall strategy. The wellness programme is aimed at assisti ng and empowering employees to make 
healthy life style choices which in turn enhances psychological, emoti onal, physical and social wellness. To this 
end, the programme provides a 24-hour care center, seven days a week, with access to psychosocial counselling 
and fi nancial, legal, and health and wellbeing advice. Wellness educati on is designed to equip employees with the 
skills they need to eff ect meaningful change in their lives.

1.6 RecogniƟ on Scheme
CATHSSETA has an employee reward and recogniti on scheme to recognise and reward CATHSSETA staff  living the 
six CATHSSETA values across the organisati on. The scheme was implemented for staff  to internalise organisati onal 
values, enhance employee engagement; organisati onal performance improvement and retenti on of talent. 
The organisati onal values drive includes regular communicati on and conversati ons on the CATHSSETA values to 
insti l and reinforce the required behaviours from employees. This was followed by a nominati on process where 
employees were encouraged to nominate other employees every three months, who were seen as living the 
values. The nominati on process culminated into the Values Awards Ceremony where employees were recognised 
for living the values.
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2. Human Resource Oversight StaƟ sƟ cs 
The public enti ty must provide the following key informati on on human resources.   All the fi nancial amounts 
must agree to the amounts disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements.  Where considered appropriate provide 
reasons for variances.

Table 21: Personnel Cost by programme/acƟ vity/objecƟ ve 

Programme/acti vity/
objecti ve

Total Expenditure 
for the enti ty 

(R’000)

Personnel 
Expendi-

ture (R’000)

Personnel exp. 
as a % of total  
exp. (R’000)

No. of
 Employees

Average per-
sonnel cost 

per employee 
(R’000)

Administrati on 63, 611 24,438 38% 51 479

Discreti onary 272, 671 27,813 10% 53 525

Total 336, 282 52,251 16% 103 507

Table 22: Personnel Cost by salary band

Level 
Personnel Expendi-

ture (R’000)

% of personnel exp. to 
total personnel cost 

(R’000)
No. of Employees

Average per-
sonnel cost 

per employee 
(R’000)

Top Management 3,825 7% 3 1,275

Senior Management 4,975 10% 3 1,658

Professional Qualifi ed 15,149 29% 20 757

Skilled 9,185 18% 23 399

Semi-skilled 17,346 33% 39 445

Unskilled 1,770 3% 15 118

Total 52,251 100% 103 507
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Table 23: Performance Rewards

Programme/acti vity/objecti ve
Performance 

Rewards(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

% of performance rewards  to 
total personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management - 3,825 0%

Senior Management 480 4,975 10%

Professional Qualifi ed 574 15,149 38%

Skilled 586 9,185 6%

Semi-skilled 712 17,346 4%

Unskilled 18 1,,770 1%

Total 2,369 52,251 4.5%

Table 24: Training Costs 

Programme/acti vity/
objecti ve

Personnel 
Expendi-

ture (R’000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training Expen-
diture as a % of 
Personnel Cost.

No. of 
Employees 

trained

Avg training  
cost per 

employee

Business Writi ng Skills 52,251 133 0.26% 16 8,312.50

Contract Management  52,251 25 0.05% 25 1, 000.00

Finance for Non-Financial 
Managers  

52,251 120 0.23% 14 8,571.43

Development Programme 
of Offi  ce Management, 
Administrati on, Recepti on, 
Minute-taking and Report 
Writi ng 

52,251 13 0.03% 1 13,000.00
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Programme/acti vity/
objecti ve

Personnel 
Expendi-

ture (R’000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training Expen-
diture as a % of 
Personnel Cost.

No. of 
Employees 

trained

Avg training  
cost per 

employee

Advanced Records and 
Informati on Management 
Standards 

52,251 25 0.05% 2 12,500.00

Women as Leaders 52,251 55 0.11% 14 3,928.57

Eff ecti ve Records, 
Informati on and Data 
Management 

52,251 15 0.03% 1 15,000.00

Public Relati ons 
Management 52,251 20 0.04% 1 20,000.00

Strategic Supply Chain 
Management, Purchasing, 
Bidding and Contract Risk 
Management Workplace

52,251 43 0.08% 4 10,750.00

Bid Committ ee’s Workshop 
for Public Enti ti es 52,251 30 0.06% 28 1,071.43

Fraud Preventi on 
Awareness Workshop 52,251 45 0.09% 76 592.11

Occupati onal Health and 
Safety, Evacuati on Plan, 
First Aid 

52,251 103 0.2% 10 10,300.00

Total 52,251 627 1.2%
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Table 25: Employment and vacancies

Programme/acti vity/objec-
ti ve

2016/17  No. 
of Employees

2017/18 Ap-
proved Posts

2017/18 No. 
of Employees

2017/18 
Vacancies

% of Vacan-
cies

Ensure eff ecti ve human 
resources management within 
the organisati on

86 103 94 9 8.7%

Table 26: Employment and vacancies per categories

Programme/acti vity/objec-
ti ve

2016/17
No. of Em-

ployees

2017/18 
Approved 

Posts

2017/18
No. of Em-

ployees

2017/18 
Vacancies

% of Vacan-
cies

Top Management 2 2 - 2 0%

Senior Management 3 3 2 1 33.3%

Professional Qualifi ed 17 20 19 1 5%

Skilled 15 18 17 1 5.5%

Semi-skilled 49 50 46 4 8%

Unskilled - 10 10 - 0%

Total 86 103 94 9 8.7%

Employment changes
The organisati on was functi oning at 91% capacity at year-end, with a total headcount of 94 employees on a full-
ti me fi xed term contract.  A total number of 16 new staff  members were appointed in various positi ons and nine 
terminati ons were recorded during the year under review.
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Table 27: Employment Changes

Salary Band
Employment at beginning 

of period
Appointments Terminati ons 

Employment at 
end of the period

Top Management 2 - 2 -

Senior Management 3 - 1 2

Professional Qualifi ed 17 3 1 19

Skilled 14 5 2 17

Semi-skilled 41 8 3 46

Unskilled 10 - - 10

Total 87 16 9 94

Table 28: Reasons for Staff  Leaving 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff  leaving

Death 1 1%

Resignati on 5 5%

Dismissal - -

Reti rement - -

Ill health - -

Expiry of contract - -

Other 3 3%

Total 9 9%
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Table 29: Labour RelaƟ ons: Misconduct and Disciplinary AcƟ on

Nature of disciplinary Acti on Number 

Verbal Warning 6

Writt en Warning 4

Final Writt en Warning 1

Dismissal 0

Total 11

Table 30: Employment Target and Employment Equity (Male)

Levels

Male

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0

Professional Qualifi ed 3 4 0 1 0 0 0 0

Skilled 4 4 0 2 0 1 0 0

Semi-skilled 11 11 0 2 1 1 0 0

Unskilled 2 3 0 1 0 1 0 0

Total 21 24 0 7 1 4 0 0
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Table 31: Employment Target and Employment Equity (Female)

Levels
Female 

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 2 2 0 1 0 1 0 0

Professional Qualifi ed 14 13 2 2 0 1 1 1

Skilled 12 11 1 1 0 1 0 0

Semi-skilled 32 26 0 3 0 3 0 0

Unskilled 8 11 0 0 0 1 0 0

Total 68 63 3 7 0 7 1 1

Table 32: Employment Target and Employment Equity (Persons with Disability)

Levels

Staff  with Disabiliti es

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management - - - -

Senior Management - - - -

Professional Qualifi ed - - - -

Skilled - - - 1

Semi-skilled - - - 1

Unskilled - - - -

Total - - - 2
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Auditor’s Report 

Report of the Auditor General to Parliament on Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality 
and Sport Sector EducaƟ on and Training Authority (CATHSSETA)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the fi nancial statements of Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector EducaƟ on and 
Training Authority (CATHSSETA) set out on pages 80 to 120, which comprise  the statement of fi nancial posiƟ on 
as at 31 March 2018, the statement of fi nancial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash fl ow 
statement and the statement of comparison of budget informaƟ on with actual informaƟ on for the year then 
ended, as well as the notes to the fi nancial statements, including a summary of signifi cant accounƟ ng policies. 

2.  In my opinion, the fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the  fi nancial posiƟ on of the 
Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector EducaƟ on and Training Authority as at 31 March 2018, and 
its fi nancial performance and cash fl ows for the year then ended in accordance with the South African standard 
of Generally Recognised AccounƟ ng PracƟ se (SA Standard of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public fi nance 
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Skills development Act of South 
Africa,1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998) (SDA).

Basis for opinion

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the InternaƟ onal Standards on AudiƟ ng (ISAs). My responsibiliƟ es 
under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibiliƟ es for the audit of the fi nancial 
statements secƟ on of this auditor’s report. 

4. I am independent of the public enƟ ty in accordance with the InternaƟ onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my 
audit in South Africa. I have fulfi lled my other ethical responsibiliƟ es in accordance with these requirements and 
the IESBA code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of maƩ er

6. I draw aƩ enƟ on to the maƩ er below. My opinion is not modifi ed in respect of this maƩ er.
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Restatement of corresponding fi gures

7. As disclosed in note 35 to the fi nancial statements, the corresponding fi gures for fi nancial year ended 31 March 
2017 have been restated as a result of an error in the fi nancial statement of the public enƟ ty for the year ended 
31 March 2018.

ResponsibiliƟ es of the AccounƟ ng Authority for the fi nancial statements

8. The AccounƟ ng Authority is responsible for the preparaƟ on and fair presentaƟ on of the fi nancial statements 
in accordance with Standard of SA GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and SDA Act and for such internal 
control as the AccounƟ ng Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the fi nancial statements, the AccounƟ ng Authority is responsible for assessing CATHSSETA’s ability 
to conƟ nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩ ers relaƟ ng to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounƟ ng unless the AccounƟ ng Authority either intends to liquidate the public enƟ ty or to 
cease operaƟ ons, or has no realisƟ c alternaƟ ve but to do so. 

Auditor-General’s responsibiliƟ es for the audit of the fi nancial statements

10. My objecƟ ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
infl uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these fi nancial statements. 

11. A further descripƟ on of my responsibiliƟ es for the audit of the fi nancial statements is included in the annexure 
to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

IntroducƟ on and scope

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general 
noƟ ce issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material fi ndings on the reported performance 
informaƟ on against predetermined objecƟ ves for selected programmes presented in the annual performance 
report. I performed procedures to idenƟ fy fi ndings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

13. My procedures address the reported performance informaƟ on, which must be based on the approved 
performance planning documents of the public enƟ ty. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness 
of the performance indicators/measures included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not 
extend to any disclosures or asserƟ ons relaƟ ng to planned performance strategies and informaƟ on in respect of 
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future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance informaƟ on. Accordingly, my fi ndings 
do not extend to these maƩ ers. 

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance informaƟ on in accordance with the criteria 
developed from the performance management and reporƟ ng framework, as defi ned in the general noƟ ce, for 
the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public enƟ ty for the year 
ended 31 March 2018.

Programmes Pages in annual performance report

Programme 03 – Learning programmes 31 - 38

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance informaƟ on was properly presented 
and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed 
further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and 
assessed the reliability of the reported performance informaƟ on to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

16. I did not raise any material fi ndings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance informaƟ on 
for programmes 3 – learning programmes. 

Other maƩ ers

17. I draw aƩ enƟ on to the maƩ ers below. 

Achievement of planned targets

18. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 26 to 38 for informaƟ on on the achievement of planned 
targets for the year [and explanaƟ ons provided for the under-/overachievement of number of targets.

Adjustment of material misstatements

19. I idenƟ fi ed material misstatements in the annual performance report submiƩ ed for audiƟ ng. These material 
misstatements were on the reported performance informaƟ on of performance indicators of learning 
programme. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise any material fi ndings on 
the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance informaƟ on.
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Report on the audit of compliance with legislaƟ on

IntroducƟ on and scope

20. In accordance with the PAA and the general noƟ ce issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report 
material fi ndings on the compliance of the public enƟ ty with specifi c maƩ ers in key legislaƟ on. I performed 
procedures to idenƟ fy fi ndings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

21. The material fi ndings on compliance with specifi c maƩ ers in key legislaƟ ons are as follows:

Procurement and contract management 

22. Some of the compeƟ Ɵ ve bids were adjudicated by a bid adjudicaƟ on commiƩ ee that was not composed in 
accordance with the policies of public enƟ ty, as required by treasury regulaƟ ons 16A6.2 (a), (b) and (c).

Other informaƟ on

23. The AccounƟ ng Authority is responsible for the other informaƟ on. The other informaƟ on comprises the 
informaƟ on included in the Annual Report which includes general informaƟ on, governance and human resources 
report. The other informaƟ on does not include the fi nancial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifi cally reported in this auditor’s 
report. 

24. My opinion on the fi nancial statements and fi ndings on the reported performance informaƟ on and compliance 
with legislaƟ on do not cover the other informaƟ on and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

25. In connecƟ on with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other informaƟ on and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other informaƟ on is materially inconsistent with the fi nancial statements and the selected programme 
presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

26. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other informaƟ on, 
I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.
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Internal control defi ciencies

27. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the fi nancial statements, reported performance informaƟ on 
and compliance with applicable legislaƟ on; however, my objecƟ ve was not to express any form of assurance on 
it. The maƩ ers reported below are limited to the signifi cant internal control defi ciencies that resulted in fi ndings 
on compliance with legislaƟ on. 

Financial and performance management

28. Management did not review and monitor compliance with the supply chain management policy, laws and 
regulaƟ ons for composiƟ on and appointments of bid commiƩ ee members. Members of bid specifi caƟ on and 
evaluaƟ on commiƩ ee parƟ cipated in the bid adjudicaƟ on of the same bids and evaluaƟ on commiƩ ee member 
was appointed aŌ er evaluaƟ on of the bid.

Auditor-General
Pretoria

31 July 2018
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 Annexure – Auditor-General’s responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepƟ cism throughout my audit of the fi nancial statements, and the procedures performed on reported 
performance informaƟ on for selected programmes and on the public enƟ ty’s compliance with respect to the 
selected subject maƩ ers.

Financial statements

2. In addiƟ on to my responsibility for the audit of the fi nancial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I 
also: 

• IdenƟ fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffi  cient and 
approprziate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecƟ ng a material misstatement resulƟ ng from 
fraud is higher than for one resulƟ ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟ onal omissions, 
misrepresentaƟ ons, or the override of internal control

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eff ecƟ veness of the 
public enƟ ty ’s internal control

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟ ng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟ ng esƟ mates and 
related disclosures made by the AccounƟ ng Authority

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors, which consƟ tutes the AccounƟ ng Authority’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounƟ ng in the preparaƟ on of the fi nancial statements. I also conclude, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟ ons that may 
cast signifi cant doubt on the CATHSSETA’s ability to conƟ nue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw aƩ enƟ on in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the fi nancial 
statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the 
fi nancial statements. My conclusions are based on the informaƟ on available to me at the date of this auditor’s 
report. However, future events or condiƟ ons may cause a public enƟ ty to cease conƟ nuing as a going concern

• Evaluate the overall presentaƟ on, structure and content of the fi nancial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the fi nancial statements represent the underlying transacƟ ons and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentaƟ on

• Obtain suffi  cient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fi nancial informaƟ on of the enƟ Ɵ es or business 
acƟ viƟ es within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements. I am responsible for 
the direcƟ on, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion. 

CommunicaƟ on with those charged with governance

3. I communicate with the AccounƟ ng Authority regarding, among other maƩ ers, the planned scope and Ɵ ming 
of the audit and signifi cant audit fi ndings, including any signifi cant defi ciencies in internal control that I idenƟ fy 
during my audit. 

4. I also confi rm to the AccounƟ ng Offi  cer and AccounƟ ng Authority that I have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relaƟ onships and other maƩ ers that may 
reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Accounti ng Authority’s Responsibiliti es and Approval

The Accounting Authority is charged by the Public Finance Management Act of 1999 (PFMA) with the responsibility to maintain
adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of annual financial statements and related financial
information in this report. It is the Accounting Authority's responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly represent
the state of affairs for the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flow for the period then
ended, in conformity with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) including any
interpretations of such statement by the Accounting Standards Board. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent
opinion on these annual financial statements.

The Accounting Authority is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management; that the system of
internal control provided a reasonable assurance that the financial records may be realised on for the preparation of the financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or losses.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of GRAP including any interpretations, guidelines
and directives. 

The annual financial statements set out on page pages 4 to 44 , which have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable
to a going concern, were approved by the Accounting Authority on the 31 May 2018.

Dr VJ Ramathesele
Chairperson
CATHSSETA BOARD

80 to 120

Victor Ramathesele (Dr) 
Chairperson of the Board: CATHSSETA
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Statement of Financial Positi on as at 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Restated*

Note(s) R '000 R '000

Assets

Current Assets
Inventories 3 577 502
Receivables from exchange transactions 5 2,703 2,578
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 212 212
Cash and cash equivalents 6 355,976 334,298

359,468 337,590

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 5,906 3,320
Intangible assets 8 5,253 -

11,159 3,320

Total Assets 370,627 340,910

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 9 12,047 14,989
Payables from non-exchange transactions 10 20,108 27,837
Donor funding 11 - 1,062
Provisions 12 6,763 6,820
Operating lease 2,417 2,317

41,335 53,025

Total Liabilities 41,335 53,025

Net Assets 329,292 287,885

Reserves
Employer grant reserve 42 42
Administration reserve 11,159 3,320
Discretionary Reserve 318,091 284,523

Total Net Assets 329,292 287,885
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Statement of Financial Performance 

2018 2017
Restated*

Note(s) R '000 R '000

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Interest received 13 22,469 18,054
Other income 14 5,089 678

Total revenue from exchange transactions 27,558 18,732

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue
SDL - Income 15 339,149 320,537
SDL - Interest and penalties 15 12,875 10,436

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 352,024 330,973

Total revenue 379,582 349,705

Expenditure
Employee related costs 16 (24,438) (22,692)
Depreciation and amortisation 17 (1,915) (1,012)
Lease rentals on operating lease 18 (5,592) (4,659)
Employer grant and project expenses 19 (272,671) (188,937)
General Expenses 20 (33,581) (38,302)

Total expenditure (338,197) (255,602)

Profit / (Loss) on disposal of assets 22 22 (53)

Surplus for the year 41,407 94,050
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Cash Flow Statement 

2018 2017
Restated*

Note(s) R '000 R '000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from stakeholders
Other income 5,089 678
Levies, interest and penalties received 352,024 330,973
Interest income 22,469 18,054

379,582 349,705

Cash payments to stakeholders, suppliers and employees
Employer grants payments (48,931) (29,466)
Discretionary grants and project payments (223,740) (164,534)
Payments to suppliers and employees (75,601) (74,107)

(348,272) (268,107)

Net cash flows from operating activities 23 31,310 81,598

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 (4,520) (2,587)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7 41 -
Purchase of other intangible assets 8 (5,253) -

- -

Net cash flows from investing activities (9,732) (2,587)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in operating lease liability 100 347
Long term liability - (42)

Net cash flows from financing activities 100 305

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21,678 79,316
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 334,298 254,982

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 355,976 334,298
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final

budget and
actual

Reference

R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions
Other income - 22,000 22,000 27,558 5,558

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Transfer revenue
Levies 319,908 - 319,908 339,149 19,241
SDL - Interest and penalties - - - 12,875 12,875
Voluntary Ley Income - 4,639 4,639 - (4,639)

Total revenue from non-exchange
transactions

319,908 4,639 324,547 352,024 27,477

Total revenue 319,908 26,639 346,547 379,582 33,035

Expenditure
Admin Expenses (39,448) (45,168) (84,616) (63,611) 21,005 31 (1)
Depreciation and Amortisation (2,540) (556) (3,096) (1,915) 1,181       (2)
Employer Grants (79,977) 33,798 (46,179) (48,931) (2,752) 31 (3)
Discretionary Grants (197,943) (14,713) (212,656) (223,740) (11,084) 31 (4)

Total expenditure (319,908) (26,639) (346,547) (338,197) 8,350

Operating surplus/(deficit) - - - 41,385 41,385
Gain on disposal of assets and
liabilities

- - - 22 22

Surplus/(deficit) for the period - - - 41,407 41,407

Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the Budget
and Actual Comparative Statement

- - - 41,407 41,407
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

AccounƟ ng Policies  
1. Presentation of Audited 'annual Financial Statements

The audited 'annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act
1 of 1999).

These audited 'annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. Unless otherwise
stated all financial figures have been rounded off to the nearest one thousand rand (R’000).

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions were
developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of
GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these audited 'annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Going concern assumption

These audited 'annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a
going concern for at least the next 12 months.

CATHSSETA's licence has been extended by The Minister of Higher Education and Training until 31st March 2020.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of plant and other assets is charged so to write down the value of these assets to their residual value over their respective
estimated useful life. The Accounting Authority is required to assess useful life and residual values of assets so that the depreciation is
charged on a systematic basis to the current carrying amount. It is the policy to write off the assets over their useful life estimated by
the organisation.  Refer to note 1.3 for further disclosure.

Accounts payable and receivables 

Cathsseta has presented their financial statements in accordance with the presentation requirements of GRAP 104 (Financial
Instruments). In accordance Cathsseta records its financial instruments on its Statement of Financial Position at armortised cost. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates fair value. (Refer to note 6 for further disclosures).

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
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Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired
item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual
value. The depreciation of assets commences on the date that the asset is available for use and when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 5-25 years
Motor vehicles Straight line 5 years
IT equipment Straight line 3-5 years
Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 years
Mobile devices Straight line 2 years

Impairment

All items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for any impairment indicators at each reporting date.

Where the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit for
the period. 

Residual Values

The assets residual value, and useful lives are reviewed annually, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date.   

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when there are no future economic
benefits expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

Repairs and Maintenance

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of financial performance during the financial period in which they are
incurred.  
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1.4 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are
attributable to the asset will flow into the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the
asset.

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Where an intangible asset is acquired at no cost or for a nominal cost, the cost is
measured at its fair value as at its acquisition date. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired by the entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent to initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost of intangible assets with finite useful lives over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. Amortisation commences when the intangible asset is ready for its intended use.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software and other intangibles 3 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting
date and any changes are recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Impairment

At each year end, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered impairment. If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment. If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately. Management is of the
opinion that there were no indication of impairment of assets for the year under review.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential
expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount and is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
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1.5 Inventories

Inventories refer to assets in the form of materials or to be distributed in the rendering of services, held for sale in the ordinary course
of operations or in the process of production.

CATHSSETTA inventory consists of stationery, promotional materials and other consumables to be consumed in the rendering of
services.

Inventory is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow
to the entity and they can be measured reliably.

Initial Measurement

Inventory, which comprises of consumables and stationery on hand, is initially measured at cost.  Inventory acquired through a non-
exchange transactions is stated at fair value at the date of acquisition. All items are kept in inventory and disclosed as an expense in the
period of actual usage. 

Subsequent Measurement 

CATHSSETA carries all inventory items held for providing services at the lower of cost and current replacement costs.

Materials to be sold to trading providers are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

1.6 Leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in return for a payment or series of payments, the right to use an
asset for an agreed period of time.

The definition of a lease includes other arrangements, such as hire purchase contracts (contracts for the hire of an asset which contain
a provision giving the hirer an option to acquire title to the asset upon the fulfilment of agreed conditions).

Finance leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as
an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair value at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a long term obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability. Finance
charges are charged to the statement of financial performance.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
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1.7 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where
the entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. The entity
contributes to retirement benefits on a defined contribution plans whose assets are held in separate trustee-administered funds that is
subject to the Pension Funds Act, 1956 as amended. Contributions are at a rate of 7% of pensionable emoluments by CATHSSETA and
which members (employees) contribute 6%.

The entity’s contributions to the defined contribution plans are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year to which
they relate and no further liability is provided for. The contributions expense is disclosed under a separate heading as part of employee
costs in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.8 Provisions and Accruals

Provisions are recognised when the SETA has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that this will result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably.

1.8.1 Accruals for employee entitlements

The cost of other employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related services. Employee
entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the Statement of Financial Position date. Provisions included in the Statement of Financial Position are
accruals  for bonuses and termination benefits. Leave days(leave accrual as per GRAP 19&25) are accrued at year end based on the daily
rate and number of days due. 

Bonuses to be paid are performance based. An accrual is raised for bonus based on actual performance appraisal scores.

1.8.2 Provisions for grants

Mandatory Grant payments 

A provision is recognised for grant payments once the specific criteria set out in the regulations to the Skills Development Act, 97 of
1998 has been complied with by member companies and it is probable that the SETA will approve the payment. 

Projects

No provision is made for projects approved at year-end, unless the service in terms of the contract has been delivered or the contract is
of an onerous nature. Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for or provided for, it is disclosed as commitments
in the notes to the financial statements.

1.9 Contigent liabilities/Discretionary Grant Commiments

The entity discloses contingent liabilities when possible obligation arising due to past event whose existence will only be confirmed by
occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future  events not wholly within control of entity or present obligation arising due to past
event not recognised because uncertainty of timing or amount or probable outflow.  

Discretionery grant commitments are the contracts whose costs to be incurred in the future in discharging the obligations by the
training providers based on contracts signed between CATHSSETA and employers.

1.10 Prepaid expenses

A prepaid expense is a payment, other than for inventory or capital assets, before the criteria for expense recognition have been met
(i.e. before receipt of goods or services). The payment is expected to yield economic benefits over one or more future periods. This is
recognised in the period it is expended.

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Commitments 
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1.11 Taxation

No provision has been made for taxation, as the SETA is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax Act , 1962
(Act 58 of 1962).

1.12 VAT

The Revenue Amendment Act of 2003 (Act No 45 of 2003)  amended the definition of an enterprise and effectively placed the public
entity outside the scope of VAT. The amended definition of enterprise came into operation with effect from 01 April 2005.

1.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the SETA, and these benefits can be measured reliably.
Revenue is categorised as either exchange revenue and non- exchange revenue.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is based on the information provided by
Department of Higher Education and Training.

1.14 Revenue from non - exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the entity receives revenue from another entity without directly
giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the extent that the
related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no obligation to repay the amount.

Levy income transfer

Skills Development Levy (SDL) transfers are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefit will flow to the SETA, and these
benefits can be measured reliably. This occurs when the Department of Higher Education (DHET) makes an allocation or payment to the
SETA, as required by Section 8 of the Skills development Levies Act, 1999, Act 9 of 2001 (as amended).

In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999), registered member companies of the
SETA with an annual payroll of more than R 500 000 pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African
Revenue Services (SARS).

The SETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS. Where SARS retrospectively amends
the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to some employers that are in excess of the amount the
SETA is permitted to have refunded the particular employer. A receivable relating to the overpayment to an employer in earlier periods
is raised at the amount of such grant over payment, net of bad debts and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

From 1 August 2005 employers with a wage/salary bill of less than R500 000 per annum were exempted from the payment of the 1%
skills levy. Some employers continued contributing the levy payments, as the Skills Levy Act makes provision for the repayment of levies
not due, the entity provides for these levies received as a creditor. This estimate is calculated using a yearly average to ascertain
employers who should be exempted from paying levies. As of 2014 all outstanding amounts for longer than five years are transferred to
the Discretionary Reserve

Revenue is adjusted for Inter-SETA transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately disclosed as Inter-SETA
transfers. The amount of the INTER-SETA adjustment is calculated according to the standard operating procedure issued by the DHET.

Voluntary contributions received from public service employers in the national and provincial spheres of government may be used to
fund the SETA administration costs and Discretionary grants. These contributions are recognised as revenue when invoiced.

When a new employer is transferred to the SETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as revenue and allocated to
the respective category to maintain its original identity.
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Interest and penalties 

Interest and penalties on the skills development levy are recognised on the same bases as levy income, on receipt thereof in the SETA’s
bank account or receipt of allocation information from DHET.

Funds allocated by the National Skills Funds for special projects 

When grants are received from NSF that have conditions attached to it, a liability will be recognised to the extent that the conditions
have not been met, and will be reduced as the conditions are satisfied with a corresponding increase in revenue.

Property, plant and equipment acquired for NSF Special Projects are capitalised in the financial statements of the SETA, as the SETA
controls such assets for the duration of the project. Such assets can however be disposed of only by agreement and specific written
instructions from the NSF.

Receivables are recognised when a binding transfer agreement is in place but the cash or other assets have not been received.

Government grants and other donor income 

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet the criteria
for recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is conditional. The
liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without any conditions attached are
recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.

Grants received that are subject to restrictions are separately disclosed with details of the restrictions attached to the asset.

1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Investment Income 

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate over
the period to maturity.

Other Income 

Other income is the revenue derived from sale of assets, and is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and the revenue can be measured reliably, significant risk and rewards
of ownership of the goods / services have been transferred to the purchaser and the seller retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods / services sold.

1.16 Grants and projects expenditure

Mandatory grants 

The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer has submitted an application for a grant in the
prescribed form, within the agreed upon cut-off period, and the application has been approved as the payment then becomes probable.
The grant is equivalent to 20% of the total levies paid by the employer during the corresponding financial period.

Discretionary grants 

A SETA may out of any surplus monies determine and allocate discretionary grants to employers, education and training providers and
workers of the employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant, in the prescribed form, within the agreed upon
cut-off period. The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the conditions are complied with.
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Discretionary grant project expenditure 

Project expenditure comprises of;
costs that relate directly to the specific contract;
costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project;
general administration costs for the use of facilities and other services rendered to or on behalf of SETA
Such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the SETA under the terms of the contract;
Salary costs related to projects.

Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs having similar
characteristics. Project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

1.17 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:
The PFMA, 1999 (as amended);
The Skills Development Act, 1998 (as amended);
The Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (as amended).

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the value of
the irregular expenditure incurred, unless it is impractical to determine, in which case reasons thereof must be provided in the
notes. Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recovered and are de-recognised when
settled or written-off as irrecoverable.

Irregular expenditure must be removed from the balance of the irregular expenditure notes when it is either :
(a) condoned by the relevant authority if no official was found to be liable in law; 
(b) recovered from an official liable in law; 
(c) written-off if it’s irrecoverable from an official liable in law; or 
(d) written-off if it’s not condoned and not recoverable. 

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. A receivable is raised in the process
of recovering the expense.

1.19 Financial instruments

Initial recognition

A financial asset or liability is recognised when, and only when, CATHSSETA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. Financial instruments recognised in the CATHSSETA balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy
statements associated with each item.
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Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
It transfers the financial asset, neither retaining nor transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, but no
longer retains control of the asset.
A financial asset or a portion thereof is derecognised when the SETA realises the contractual rights to the benefits specified in the
contract, the rights expire, and the SETA surrenders those rights or otherwise loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the
financial asset. On de-recognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the sum of the proceeds
receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect the fair value of the asset that had been reported in equity is included in net surplus or
deficit for the period.

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value net of transaction costs. Subsequently they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or where appropriate, a shorter period. The
average credit period is 30 days from date of invoice. CATHSSETA has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit time frame and in compliance with the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999, as amended.

A financial liability or a part thereof is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. On
de-recognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability, including related unamortized costs, and the
amount paid for it is included in surplus or deficit for the period.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract
is longer retains control of the asset. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part thereof) extinguished or
transferred to another party and consideration received, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and investments in money market instruments with an original
maturity of less than three months.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is measured at amortised cost, which approximates their fair value.

Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measures at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets 

At each balance sheet date an assessment is made of whether there is any objective evidence of impairment of financial assets. For
certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, are assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include CATHSSETA’s past experience of collecting payments an increase in the number
of delayed payments past the average period of 30 days as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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Fair Value Considerations 

The fair values at which financial instruments are carried at the Statement of Financial Position date have been determined using
available market values.

Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest
rates. The fair values have been estimated using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies, but are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the SETA could realise in the normal course of business.

1.20 Reserves

Reserves are sub-classified in the statement of financial position as following reserves: 

Administration reserve: The balance of this reserve is equal to/or less than net carrying value of Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets. All net income is transferred to the Discretionary Reserve, net deficit is transferred from the Discretionary Reserve.
These transfers are done in compliance with the Skills Development Act and Regulations.

Employer grant reserve: This reserve is for the payment of newly registered levy payers whose registration date still allows the
completion of a WSP. Submission of the WSP will result in Grant payments. All reserves of levy payers who did not complete and submit
WSP’s are transferred to the Discretionary Reserve.

Discretionary reserve: This reserve is for the purpose of Discretionary Grants and Projects in compliance with the Skills Development
Act and Regulations.

This sub-classification is made based on the restrictions placed on the distribution of monies received in accordance with the
Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998).

Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development Act and the regulations issued in terms of
the Act; for the purpose of the following:
Administration costs of the SETA,
Mandatory Workplace Skills Planning / Implementation Grant, and
Discretionary grants and projects.

In addition, 10% of contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of government may be
used to pay for its administration costs.

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are utilised for discretionary grants and projects.
Other income received are utilised for discretionary grants.

The net surplus/deficit is allocated to the administration reserve and the discretionary fund reserve in terms of the Grant Regulations
based on the above. The administration reserve comprises of the future depreciation of all property, plant and equipment plus the 5%
of uncommitted discretionary grant funds at the end of the year.

2018 2017

Administration %10.50 %10.50
Mandatory grants %20.00 %20.00
Discretionery grants %49.50 %49.50

Received by SETA 80,00% 80,00%
Contribution by National Skills Fund %20.00 %20.00

%100.00 %100.00
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1.21 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities
within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged
with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed separately.

1.22 Events after reporting date

Subsequent events are all events that occur between the reporting date (31 March) and the date on which the financial statements are
authorised for issue by the Executive Authority for tabling in Parliament. 

Adjusting events are all the events that confirm the financial performance and the financial position of the entity at year-end. If the
impact of the subsequent event is; the financial statements are adjusted accordingly. 

Non-adjusting events which take place after the reporting date are not recognised; only a disclosure is made on the financial
statements.

1.23 Budget information

Budgets are prepared on an annual basis and compared with actual results on a month to month basis. CATHSSETA presents in the
annual financial statements the comparison, the explanations and relevant reconciliation in terms of GRAP 24- Presentation of Budget.
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

2. Allocation of the net surplus for the year to reserves

2018

Total
Statement of

Financial
Performance

Administration
Reserve

Employer
Grant

Reserves

Discretionary
Grants

Reserves

Administration levy income (10,5%) 45,602 45,602 - -
Mandatory grant levy income (20%) 83,201 - 83,201 -
Discretionary grant levy income (49,5%) 211,406 - - 211,406
SDL: Penalties and interest 12,875 - - 12,875
Investment income 22,470 - - 22,470
Other income 4,028 - - 4,028

Total revenue 379,582 45,602 83,201 250,779
Administration expenses (65,504) (65,504) - -
Employer grants (48,931) - (48,931) -
Discretionary grants (223,740) - - (223,740)

41,407 (19,902) 34,270 27,039

2017

Total
Statement of

Financial
Performance

Administration
Reserve

Employer
Grant

Reserves

Discretionary
Grants

Reserves

Administration levy income (10,5%) 42,161 42,161 - -
Mandatory grant levy income (20%) 80,303 - 80,303 -
Discretionary grant levy income (49,5%) 198,751 - - 198,751
SDL: Penalties and interest 10,436 - - 10,436
Investment income 18,054 - - 18,054

Total revenue 349,705 42,161 80,303 227,241
Administration expenses (66,665) (66,665) - -
Other expenses (53) (53) - -
Employer grants (29,466) - (29,466) -
Discretionary grants (159,471) - - (159,471)

94,050 (24,557) 50,837 67,770

3. Inventories

Inventories 577 502

Balance at beginning of year 502 366
Movement for the period 75 136

Balance at year end 577 502
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Inter-seta receivables 212 212

The costs of receivables approximate their fair values. No receivables were considered to be impaired at year end.

5. Receivables from exchange transactions

Sundry debtors 1,178 1,527
Prepayments 825 351
Office rental deposit 700 700

2,703 2,578

The costs of receivables approximate their fair values. No receivables were considered to be impaired at year end. 

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 3 3
Bank balances 36,092 54,942
Short-term deposits 319,881 279,353

355,976 334,298

As required by Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts are to be held.

Treasury Regulation 31.3 requires that, unless exempted by the National Treasury, the SETA as a public entity that is listed in Schedule
3A of the Act must invest surplus funds with the Corporation for Public Deposits. As the SETA was exempted by the National Treasury
from the requirements of Treasury Regulation 31.3 to invest surplus funds with the Corporation for Public Deposits, surplus funds were
invested in line with the investment policy as required by Treasury Regulation 31.3.5.

7. Property, plant and equipment

2018 2017

Cost / Valuation Accumulated
depreciation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost / Valuation Accumulated
depreciation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Leasehold property 700 (216) 484 700 (76) 624
Furniture and fixtures 4,310 (2,169) 2,141 3,050 (1,599) 1,451
Motor vehicles 2,418 (460) 1,958 168 (131) 37
IT equipment 4,031 (2,922) 1,109 3,414 (2,206) 1,208
Mobile devices 301 (97) 204 301 (301) -
Minor plant 23 (13) 10 - - -

Total 11,783 (5,877) 5,906 7,633 (4,313) 3,320
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

7. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

Opening balance Additions Disposals Reclassifications Depreciation Total
Leasehold property 624 - - - (140) 484
Furniture and fixtures 1,451 1,260 - - (572) 2,141
Motor vehicles 37 2,250 - - (329) 1,958
IT equipment 1,208 688 (14) (9) (763) 1,109
Mobile devices - 299 (5) 9 (99) 204
Minor plant - 23 - - (13) 10

3,320 4,520 (19) - (1,916) 5,906

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017

Opening balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total
Leasehold property - 700 - (76) 624
Furniture and fixtures 867 970 (21) (365) 1,451
Motor vehicles 76 - - (39) 37
IT equipment 855 917 (32) (532) 1,208

1,798 2,587 (53) (1,012) 3,320

Residual values were not changed from prior years. The assets in use were not impaired. There are no restrictions on the title of PPE
items. None of the items of PPE are pledged as security over debt. 

2018 Cost Accumulated
Depreciation

Carrying Amount

Owned Assets 11,083 (5,562) 5,521
Leased Assets 700 (315) 385

11,783 (5,877) 5,906

2017 Cost Accumulated
Depreciation

Carrying Amount

Owned Assets 6,632 (3,836) 2,796
Leased Assets 1,001 (477) 524

7,633 (4,313) 3,320
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

8. Intangible assets

2018 2017

Cost / Valuation Accumulated
amortisation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost / Valuation Accumulated
amortisation and

accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Computer software, other - - - - - -
Intangible assets under
development

5,253 - 5,253 - - -

Total 5,253 - 5,253 - - -

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018

Opening balance Additions Total
Intangible assets under development - 5,253 5,253

9. Payables from exchange transactions

Bonus provision 5,942 3,536
Leave accrual 1,652 1,616
Admin accrual 4,453 9,837

12,047 14,989

 There was a reclassification of payables from exchange transactions to payables from non exchange transactions. Refer to note 35 and
note 10.

10. Payables from non exchange transactions

Project accrual 17,824 24,494
Levy creditors 2,284 3,343

20,108 27,837

The carrying amount of payables approximate their fair value. There was a reclassification of payables from exchange transactions to
payables from non exchange transactions. Refer to note 35 and note 9.

11. Donor funding

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Donor funding - SA Host - 626
Donor funding - DEAT - 436

- 1,062

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year - 1,062
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

11. Donor funding (continued)

The Donor fund that was received in the past has been transferred to exchange revenue. Refer to 1.14. 

12. Provisions

SMME Provision
SMME provision - below R500K 6,763 6,820

Opening Balance Movement Total
SMME provision - below R500K 6,820 (57) 6,763

13. Investment income

Interest received - investments 22,469 18,054

14. Other revenue

EPWP 5,050 -
Insurance refunds 39 676

5,089 676

15. Levy income

Skills development levy

2018 Administration Employer grants Discretionary
grants

Total

Levy income received from DHET - current period 43,800 83,201 206,742 333,743
Government levies received 5,406 - - 5,406
Inter-SETA transfers out - - - -

49,206 83,201 206,742 339,149

2017 Administration Employer grants Discretionary
grants

Total

Levy income received from DHET - current period 41,380 78,896 195,039 315,315
Levy income received from DHET - prior period 159 299 741 1,199
Government levies received 4,016 - - 4,016
Inter-SETA transfers in 1 2 4 7

45,556 79,197 195,784 320,537

Penalties and interest

Penalties received 7,047 5,971
Interest received 5,828 4,465

12,875 10,436
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16. Employee related costs

Basic 19,193 18,254
Bonus 2,396 1,794
Medical aid - company contributions 674 545
UIF 146 117
WCA 45 -
SDL 188 188
Leave pay provision charge (26) 54
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances - 2
HR - support salaries - 238
Long-term benefits - Pension, disability and funeral 1,823 1,500

24,439 22,692

17. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 1,915 1,012

18. Operating leases

Rental fees 5,592 4,659

18.1 Minimum Lease Payments
Within one year 5,903 4,559
In second year to fifth year 11,200 16,784

17,103 21,343

CATHSETTA leases a building from Sanlam Life Insurance (Ltd) for a period of 7 years, effective from 1 May 2014. No contingent rent is
payable. The lease agreement is not renewable at the end of the lease term. The lease is non cancellable.

CATHSETTA leases printing and photo copy machinery from Flex Technology as from 01 June 2017. The monthly payable amount is
fixed for the duration of the contract.

19. Employer grant and project expenses

Employer grant 48,931 29,466
Discretionary grants 223,740 159,471

272,671 188,937
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20. General expenses

Advertising 927 1,197
Auditors remuneration - internal and external 4,387 3,416
Bank charges 104 43
Board fees and admin 2,506 225
Catering 258 112
Cleaning 387 501
Conferences and seminars 611 18
Consulting and professional fees 2,250 8,101
Consumables 151 128
Insurance 334 219
Legal fees 3,181 9,166
Motor vehicle expenses 26 22
Other expenses 474 486
Placement fees 1,654 2,019
Postage and courier 53 182
Printing and stationery 1,164 487
QCTO 1,686 1,520
Repairs and maintenance 49 540
Secretarial fees 825 560
Security Expenses 1,145 1,115
Staff refreshments 214 249
Subscriptions and membership fees 88 28
System costs 4,164 3,487
Telephone and fax 2,923 1,173
Training 1,378 1,101
Travel - local 1,539 944
Water and electricity 1,103 1,264

33,581 38,303

The prior year expense line items were reviewed and re-grouped in order to enhance fair presentation and disclosure for the users.

21. Auditors' remuneration

Fees - External Auditors 2,884 2,827
Fees - Internal Auditors 1,503 589

4,387 3,416

22. Profit / (Loss) on disposal of assets

Property, plant and equipment 22 (53)
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23. Cash generated from operations

Surplus 41,407 94,050
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,915 1,012
(Profit) / Loss on disposal of assets (22) 53
Movements in provisions (57) -
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (75) (136)
Receivables from exchange transactions (128) (794)
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - 2,645
Payables from exchange transactions (2,939) (11,528)
Payables from non - exchange transactions (7,729) (3,704)
Donor funding (1,062) -

31,310 81,598

24. Commitments Discretionary Grants

Discretionary grants

2018 Opening Balance
01/04/2017

R'000

Prior period
error

R'000

Additions

R'000

Movement

R'000

Total
31/03/2018

R'000
Apprenticeship 2,017 - 2,767 (2,892) 1,892
Bursaries 42,007 (2,835) 32,993 (40,540) 31,625
Quality assurance 2,304 - - (2,304) -
Events 2,094 - - (2,094) -
Internship 19,302 - 32,502 (31,143) 20,661
Learnership 53,837 - 26,092 (55,270) 24,659
Research - - 100 (67) 33
Skills 87,398 - 46,671 (57,340) 76,729
WIL 22,404 - 50,861 (42,206) 31,059
Special projects 4,072 - 5,284 (3,482) 5,874

235,435 (2,835) 197,270 (237,338) 192,532

2017 Opening Balance

R'000

Additions

R'000

Movement

R'000

Total

R'000
Apprenticeship 4,275 4,700 (6,958) 2,017
Bursaries 22,654 60,921 (41,567) 42,007
Quality assurance 1,000 2,886 (1,581) 2,305
Events - 3,997 (1,903) 2,094
Internship 5,217 32,628 (18,543) 19,302
Learnership 58,733 43,480 (48,376) 53,837
Project Management 1,658 - (1,658) -
Research 4,645 - (4,645) -
Skills programme 34,624 84,341 (31,568) 87,397
WIL 12,935 35,098 (25,630) 22,404
Special projects - 4,072 - 4,072

145,741 272,123 (182,429) 235,435
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

During the year the Discretionary grant line items were reclassified based on the nature of the agreements signed.

25. Related parties

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) is the Executive Authority for CATHSSETA. All SETA'S are under the common
control of the DHET are related parties.

Transactions with other SETAS

All SETA'S are under the common control of the DHET and all transactions between the SETA'S are disclosed separately below.

Interest transactions and balances arise due to movement of employers from one SETA to another. The necessary notifications
between the transacting SETA'S have therefore been exchanged and where applicable, the necessary payments have been made. No
other transactions occurred during the year with other SETAS. All transactions were at arm's length. 

2018
Receivables/(Payables)

2017
Receivables/(Payables)

Services SETA 212 212

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements



Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

106

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority   | (CATHSSETA)
(Registration number 25/ CATHSSETA /1/04/11)

Fi
gu

re
s i

n 
Ra

nd

25
.

Re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s (

co
nt

in
ue

d)

Re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

Ke
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

em
un

er
at

io
n

20
18

Sa
la

ry

R'
00

0

Bo
nu

se
s a

nd
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
re

la
te

d
pa

ym
en

ts

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s

R'
00

0

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
R'

00
0

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
ot

he
r s

ch
em

e
R'

00
0

To
ta

l

R'
00

0

N
am

e
P 

Ke
da

m
a 

- A
dm

in
ist

ra
to

r
16

5
-

-
-

-
16

5
S 

Si
lin

ga
 

1,
51

5
-

31
4

8
-

1,
83

7
M

 S
he

zi 
1,

70
5

-
15

44
1

1,
76

5
D 

M
at

hi
be

di
1,

12
8

16
9

19
8

76
14

1,
58

5
M

 M
w

an
dl

a 
1,

31
2

17
7

12
4

54
11

1,
67

8
K 

Pe
ba

ne
1,

06
0

13
5

31
7

71
14

1,
59

7
P 

M
py

e
-

-
11

5
-

-
11

5

6,
88

5
48

1
1,

08
3

25
3

40
8,

74
2

20
17

Au
di

te
d 

An
nu

al
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Au
di

te
d 

An
nu

al
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

K 
Le

ba
ka



Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

107

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority   | (CATHSSETA)
(Registration number 25/ CATHSSETA /1/04/11)

20
18

20
17

R 
'0

00
R 

'0
00

25
.

Re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s (

co
nt

in
ue

d)

Sa
la

ry

R'
00

0

Bo
nu

se
s a

nd
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
re

la
te

d
pa

ym
en

ts
R'

00
0

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s

R'
00

0

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

to
 p

en
sio

n
fu

nd

R'
00

0

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
ot

he
r s

ch
em

e

R'
00

0

To
ta

l

R'
00

0
N

am
e

P 
Ke

da
m

a 
- A

dm
in

ist
ra

to
r

1,
72

9
-

-
-

12
1,

74
1

M
r S

ili
ng

a
92

7
-

32
64

-
1,

02
3

M
r S

he
zi

1,
20

7
-

16
82

-
1,

30
5

M
 M

w
an

dl
a 

98
6

15
3

14
0

67
12

1,
35

8
M

s M
at

hi
be

di
1,

06
0

6
16

60
-

1,
14

2
M

s P
 P

eb
an

e
97

9
11

1
90

67
8

1,
25

5

6,
88

8
27

0
29

4
34

0
32

7,
82

4

Au
di

te
d 

An
nu

al
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
8

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Au
di

te
d 

 A
nn

ua
l F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

M
s K

 L
eb

ak
a

20
17



Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority

108

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality And Sport Sector Education And Training Authority   | (CATHSSETA)
(Registration number 25/ CATHSSETA /1/04/11)

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the audited Annual Financial Statements 

2018 2017
R '000 R '000

25. Related parties (continued)

Remuneration of Audit Comm, HR and Finance Committees

2018

Name of Member Audit & Risk
Committee

R'000

Hr & Fin
Committee

R'000

RTJWC

R'000

Gov and Strat

R'000

Total

R'000
L Motlhamme 7 - - - 7
B Seti 2 - - - 2
N Mokou 70 - - - 70
L Tshabalala - - 3 - 3
J Shilubane 52 - - - 52
G Fredericks - 10 - - 10
SN Ndhlovu - 24 - - 24
Mr ZL Mopoma - 4 - - 4
AD Mbatha 6 - - - 6
BE Hendricks - 24 - - 24
CA Pop - - - 78 78
E Khosa - - - 63 63
L Reddy - - - 66 66
PP Sithole - 25 - - 25

137 87 3 207 434

2017

Name of Member Audit & Risk
Committee

R'000

HR & Fin
Committee

R'000

Allowances

R'000

Total

R'000
L Motlhamme 15 - - 15
N Mokou 32 - - 32
AD Mbatha 9 - - 9
J Shilubane 27 - - 27
G Fredericks - 5 - 5
SN Ndhlovu - 8 - 8

83 13 - 96

RemuneraƟ on of Audit, HR and Finance CommiƩ ees

2-

135 89
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25. Related parties (continued)

Remuneration of Joint Working Committee Members 

2018

Name of Member Board members

R'000

Total

R'000
Mr P Kedama 451 451
Mr B Sikani 206 206
Mr CA Pop 124 124
Mr ERA Khosa 162 162
Dr JR Ramathesela 182 182
Ms L Reddy 111 111
Ms PP Sithole 124 124
Mr BE Hendricks 101 101
BB Seti 9 9

1,470 1,470

Board Members

Dr VR Ramathesle

Ms BB SeƟ 
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R '000 R '000

25. Related parties (continued)

2017

Name of Member JWC Arts,culture
& Coversation

R'000

Total

R'000
G Raven 5 5

26. Irregular Expenditure

Opening balance 978 1,391
Payments for bursaries (pre administration, contract under court review) - 836
Contracts extension by Accounting officer with no due authority (pre administration) - 6,353
Non compliance to legislation (Variations) 6,152 142
Over expenditure on administration costs (10,5% and 7,5%) 41,123 36,156

48,253 44,878
Relating to Prior period - non submission made for prior period expenditure - (1,391)
Condoned: current period irregular expenditure on deviation to regulation - (6,353)
Condoned: excess administration costs in the current period (10,5% and 7,5%) (41,123) (36,156)

7,130 978

Incidents

The irregular expenditure incurred in the current year amounting to R47.2m is as a result of transgressions with the following:
- R6.1m is non compliance with Treasury Regulations
- R41.1m is non compliance with Grant Regulations. 

Management has put measures in place to strengthen the procurement process to ensure non-recurrence of similar incidences in the
future.

27. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Cancelled Flights 4 -
Interest on Rent 6 -
Catering services 3 -
Cancelled tender adverts 87 -

100 -

2018

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred was as a result of the following:
- Cancelled flights for managers and board members
- Interest charged on late rental payments
- Cancelled catering services and tender adverts.
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2018 2017
R '000 R '000

28. Volutary Levies

Below is a detailed breakdown of the voluntary levies received

Name of Institution
National Department of Sport & Recreation 233 129
Department of sports Free State 1,050 -
Department of Sports & Recreation - KZN 274 289
Department of Sport,Recreation,arts and culture (EC) 1,073 1,078
PE Opera HPR Opera House - 4
ECPTA - PROJECT DG W2014W2 117 299
Department of Sports GP 650 -
Department of Economics Free State - 568
Gauteng Tourism Authority 126 -
Sanbi Main - 749
Department of Agriculture Gauteng 429 480
Department of Arts, culture and Traditional affairs NW 61 -
Department of Sports North West - 58
Department of Environmental Affairs Northern Cape - 266
KZN Triatholon Association - 96
Department of tourism National 382 -
KZN Tourism Authority 123 -
SA National Biodiversity Institute 888 -

5,406 4,016

29. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

In the course of the SETA operations it is exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risk.  The SETA has developed a
comprehensive risk strategy in terms of TR 28.1 in order to monitor and control these risks.  The risk management process relating to
each of these risks is discussed under the headings below.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for the liquidity risk management rest with the Administrator of CATHSSETA, who has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of CATHSSETA's short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. CATHSSETA manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows.

Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject the SETA to the risk of non-performance by counter parties and thereby subject to credit
concentrations of credit risk, consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, investments and accounts receivable.   

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
`

Financial instrument 2018
R'000 

2017
R'000

Accounts receivable 2,703 2,578
Cash and cash equivalent-current 36,093 54,945
Cash and cash equivalent - short term deposits 319,883 279,353

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements 
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

CATHSSETA is exposed to interest rate risk as all surplus funds are invested in short term cash investments. Although changes in the
current interest rate affect the income from these investments all income received from these investments is deemed to be income to
the Discretionary Reserve and would not affect the productivity or existence of CATHSSETA directly. Further the bulk of the surplus
funds are invested in fixed term fixed rate investments and are therefore not sensitive to interest changes.

Foreign exchange risk

The entity does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

CATHSSETA has no exposure to foreign currency.

The entity reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments on an ongoing basis. The entity expects its foreign exchange
contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure.

Price risk

As CATHSSETA has no investments in any form of equity there is no exposure to price risk.

Capital risk management

CATHSSETA manages its capital to ensure that the projects of the organisation will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return on investments of surplus funds and ensuring continuous benefits for all stake holders. CATHSSETA overall
strategy remains unchanged from the previous financial year.

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Notes to the Audited  Annual Financial Statements 
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments

2018

Financial assets Interest bearing

R'000

Non-interest
bearing

R'000

Total

R'000
Cash (interest @6%) 319,883 36,093 355,976
Accounts receivable - 2,703 2,703

319,883 38,796 358,679

Financial liabilities Interest bearing

R'000

Non-interest
bearing

R'000

Total

R'000
Accounts payable - 41,335 41,335

2017

Financial assets Interest bearing

R'000

Non-interest
bearing

R'000

Total

R'000
Cash (interest @6%) 279,353 54,945 334,298
Accounts receivable - 2,578 2,578

279,353 57,523 336,876

Financial liabilities Interest bearing Non-interest
bearing

Total

Accounts payable - 53,025 53,025

Quality of credit

All accounts receivable is with organisations well known to CATHSSETA and in the same industry as CATHSSETA. The accounting
authority has full trust in the quality of these accounts and did not deem it necessary to apply any further evaluation of credit quality.

Fair value of accounts receivable

The fair value of accounts receivables approximates the carrying amount due to the relative short term maturity of these assets. The
effect of discounting was considered and found to be immaterial.

Accounts receivable; defaults; security and pledges

No accounts receivable has defaulted during the year and no alternative arrangements has been made with any accounts receivable
during the year.

No security is held for any receivables.

No portion of the accounts receivable was pledged as security for any financial liabilities.

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

The SETA management limits its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions approved
by National Treasury through the approval of their investment policy in terms of Treasury Regulation. The CATHSSETA's exposure is
continuously monitored by the Accounting Authority. Further the organisation has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparts. CATHSSETA only transact with Banks that are part of the "big five" registered banks in South Africa and which are
approved by National Treasury as per the PFMA, the credit and investment ratings of the mentioned banks are monitored on a
continues basis with international credit rating agencies to ensure the mitigation of any risks involved. CATHSSETA's has developed a
comprehensive Investment Policy in compliance with the PFMA which ensures that all the surplus fund investments are invested
between at least three registered banks and that at each bank no more that 60% is invested in up to maximum three month fixed
deposit with balance in money market or call accounts.

An interest change sensitivity analysis resulted in immaterial effect on the Cash and Cash equivalents of the entity.

The amount disclosed for cash and cash equivalents represents the maximum exposure that credit risk pose to the entity.

Maximum exposure

The amount disclosed for accounts receivable represents the maximum exposure that credit risk pose to the entity.

Default

The entity has never defaulted on any of the accounts payable nor were any of the terms attached to the accounts payable ever re-
negotiated.

Fair value

Financial instruments recognised in the CATHSSETA Statement of Financial Position includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in Note 1 to these annual financial
statements.

30. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

In the application of the Seta’s accounting policies management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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31. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 

The budget and accounting basis adopted by CATHSSETA are the same. The budget on the accrual basis. The statement of Comparison
of the Budget and Actual Amounts is shown on the face of the annual financial statements. 

Below are the detailed explanations for the 2018 differences: 

1.The underspending is due to the to amongst others, the resignation of three key personnel, the capitalisation of software
development costs as intangible assets. The implementation of cost containment measures. 

2. Underspending on depreciation is due to some assets being under construction and not yet brought to use.     

3. The over expenditure is due to the increased number of workshops across the country which led to an increase in the WSP approval.  

4.The over expenditure is due to an increase in performance information which was reported at 87 percent of targets and an increase in
admin expenditure(7.5 %) relating to discretionary grants .

32. Contingencies

First time employer registrations

The Skills Development Act, 1998 allows for an employer, registering for the first time, 6 months to submit an application for
mandatory grants. At the date of reporting there will be amounts payable but contingent on certain conditions being fulfilled.

Contingent assets

The forensic investigation instituted by management against ex-finance employee was completed in May 2016. The forensic
investigation results of the investigation indicated that the former employee misdirected funds to private bank accounts between the
2010 and 2014 period. The legal action was instituted to recover R5,5 million from a former employee for undue benefit. The case has
been transferred to the Asset and Forfeiture Unit within the National Prosecuting Authority, since the amount was just over R5 million. 

Due to the uncertainty of the recoverability of this amount, it is still not possible to raise recognise it as an account receivable at the
period 31/03/2018 end and is consequently considered a contingent asset until the legal proceedings outcome is known and the case is
concluded.

Contingent liablities 
The following claims have been made against CATHSSETA and were pending finalisation at reporting date:

- Claim by employers and training provider for the amount of R21.6 million, with regards to contractual disputes. 
- Former employees have instituted legal cases against the entity, resulting in contingent liabilities of R254 thousands.

Investigations 

Managenent will be conducting an investigation of a possible supplier collusion on an RFQ awarded which was less than a million rand.

33. Going concern

The audited 'annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. The SETA's license will operate until 31 March
2020.

34. Subsequent events
Vat has increased from 14 % to 15 % with effect on 01 April 2018. This affects the future minimum lease payments. 
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35. Prior year errors and reclassifications

35.1 Commitments balance

Prior year commitment balance was overstated. The closing balance did not include other contracts that were already committed at
year end. The value is shown below.

Commitment balance 
Value of contracts not included - 2,835

The impact on the statement of financial performance and statement of financial position is nil. 

35.2 Reversal of incorrect project provision
The prior year figures have been restated as shown below in relation to the provision liability for projects. The net effect on the
statement of financial position will be an increase in discretionary reserve.

Statement of Financial Performance

Previously
reported

R'000 

Adjustment

R'000

Restated
balance
R'000

Employer grant and project expenses 194,000 (5,063) 188,937

Statement of Financial Position 
Project accrual 29,558 (5,063) 24,495

Statement of changes in equity
Net assets 279,459 5,063 284,522

36. Change in accounting estimate

Property, plant and equipment

In the prior year, the useful life of computer equipment changed from 2 - 16 years to being 3 - 5 years and that of office furniture and
equipment from 2 - 26 years to being 5 - 25 years.

In the current year the useful life of mobile devices was changed from 3 years to being 2 years.

The financial impact of the change in the useful life review, resulted in the depreciation cost as shown below:

Old depreciation 1,919 1,207
New depreciation on new estimate (1,916) (195)

3 1,012
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Figures in Rand

37. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The entity is organised and reports to management on the basis of three major functional areas: Administration,Mandatory grants and
Discretionary grants . The segments were organised around the type of service delivered and the target market. Management uses
these same segments for determining strategic objectives. Segments were aggregated for reporting purposes.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances and for
making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also considered appropriate
for external reporting purposes.

Aggregated segments

The entity operates throughout the country in six provinces. Segments were aggregated on the basis of services delivered as
management considered that the economic characteristics of the segments throughout the regions were sufficiently similar to warrant
aggregation.

Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities

2018

Administration Mandatory
grants

Discretionary
grants

Total

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 45,602 83,201 211,406 340,209
SDL - - 12,875 12,875
Investment Income - - 22,470 22,470
Other income - - 4,028 4,028

Total segment revenue 45,602 83,201 250,779 379,582

Entity's revenue 379,582

Expenditure
Grants paid (65,504) (48,931) (223,740) (338,175)

Total segmental surplus/(deficit) 41,407

Assets
Segment assets 5,430 - 5,729 11,159

Total assets as per Statement of financial Position 11,159

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 41,334 - - 41,334

Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Position 41,334

Following a change in the composition of its reportable segments, the corresponding items of segment information for earlier periods
has been restated.

Measurement of segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities
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37. Segment information (continued)

Basis of accounting for transactions between reportable segments

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies, except that
pension expense for each segment is recognised and measured on the basis of cash payments to the pension plan.

The nature of differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ surplus or deficit and the entity’s surplus or deficit
and discontinued operations

Information about geographical areas

The entity’s operations are in six provinces.

The table below indicates the relevant geographical information after eliminating inter segmental transfers:

2018

External
revenues from
non-exchange
transactions

Total
expenditure

Non-current
assets*

Gauteng - 4,087 953
KZN - 7,098 834
Mpumalanga - 4,589 924
Western Cape - 21,587 1,162
Eastern Cape - 10,914 1,184
Free State - 8,335 1,067
Head office 379,582 281,565 5,035

Total 379,582 338,175 11,159

2017

External
revenues from
non-exchange
transactions

Total
expenditure

Non-current
assets*

Gauteng - 8,420 53
KZN - 7,836 34
Mpumalanga - 3,335 28
Western Cape - 9,211 662
Eastern Cape - 8,346 184
Free State - 3,844 166
Head office 349,705 214,610 2,193

Total 349,705 255,602 3,320
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38. New standards and interpretations

38.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2017 or later periods:
Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:

Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements Not yet determined Cathsseta will have to prepare its financial
statements in terms of this Standard; once it
bceomes effective.

GRAP 35: Consolidated financial statements Not yet determined This Standard will have no impact on Cathsseta
once it becomes effective; as Cathsseta is not a
group of entities.

GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures Not yet determined There will be no impact on Cathsseta from the
requirements of this Standard once it becomes
effective.

GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements Not yet determined There will be no impact on Cathsseta from the
requirements of this Standard once it becomes
effective.

GRAP 38: Disclosure of interest in other entities Not yet determined There will be no impact on Cathsseta from the
requirements of this Standard once it becomes
effective.

GRAP 110: Living and non - living resources Not yet determined There will be no impact on Cathsseta from the
requirements of this Standard once it becomes
effective.

GRAP 20: Related parties Not yet determined The standard provides guidance on accounting
for related party relationships and related
transactions.The principles of this standard are
already adopted in the related party diclosures;
as are also prescribed by the PFMA and
Treasury Regulations.  

GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor Not yet determined The purpose of this standard is to prescribe the
accounting treatment for service concession
arrangements by the Grantor. The standard
currently has no impact on CATHSSETA

GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables Not yet determined This standard establishes accounting principles
for the reporting entities on disclosure of
statutory receivables. This standard may have
an impact on CATHSSETA financial reporting in
future once effective.

GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents Not yet determined This standard outlines principles to be used by
an entity to assess whether it is party to a
principal-agent arrangement and whether it is a
principal or an agent in undertaking
transactions in terms of such an arrangement.
This standard may have no impact on
CATHSSETA financial reporting in future dates
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38. New standards and interpretations (continued)

38.2 Effective Standards

The following standards and interpretations became effective in the prior period. The nature of these Standards did not impact on the
operations of the CATHSSETA and consequently have no impact on the financial statements of the SETA.

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

GRAP 107:Mergers 01 April 2015 The objective of this Standard is to provide
accounting principles guidance for merged
entities. It has no impact on the SETA.

GRAP 105:Transfers of functions between entities under
common control

01 April 2015 The Standard establishes accounting
principles for the acquirer and transferor
in a transfer of functions between entities
under common control.

GRAP 106:Transfers of functions between entities not under
common control

01 April 2015 The Standard establishes accounting
principles for the acquirer and transferor
in a transfer of functions between entities
not under common control.
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